10.

11.
12.
13.
14.

0 NV R WN e

Infrastructure Committee

AGENDA
Jefferson County Courthouse
320 S. Main Street, Room 112

Jefferson, WI 53549

March 12, 2013

1:00 p.m.

Committee Members
Richard Jones, Rick Kuhiman, Vice Chair, Russell Kutz, Don Reese, Chair, Dick Schultz, Secretary

Call to order

Roll call

Certification of compliance with the Open Meetings Law

Review of the Agenda

Public Comment

Approval of the February 19, 2013 Infrastructure Committee meeting minutes
Communications

Discussion and possible action on establishing drop off site(s) for the Community Supported Agriculture {CSA)
program deliveries

Discussion and possible action on reconsideration of the Committee’s February 19, 2013 motion to
recommend to the County Board approval of an architectural and engineering contract with Barrientos
Design for the final design and construction management of the Highway Department’s Lake Mills satellite
facility

Closed session per Wisconsin State Statutes §19.85(1)(e) and (g) to discuss negotiations concerning the
purchase of public property and conferring with legal counsel

Reconvene in open session to take possible action on any items discussed in closed session

Potential items for the Committee’s next meeting

Set tentative next committee meeting time and date

Adjourn

2013

March 20™

April 17"

All meetings in Room 112 at 10:30 a.m. unless noted

The Committee may discuss and/or take action on any item specifically listed on the agenda

A quorum of the members of Land and Water Conservation Committee and the Highway Committee may attend

this meeting. No action will be taken by these two Committees.

Individuals requiring special accommodations for attendance at the meeting should contact the County
Administrator 24 hours prior to the meeting at 920-674-7101 so appropriate arrangements can be made



Jefferson County Board

Committee Minutes #‘(ﬁ

February 19, 2013
Infrastructure Committee

Call to order
Meeting called to order by Supervisor Reese at 10:30 a.m.

Roll call of Committee Members
Richard Jones, Rick Kuhlman, Russell Kutz, Don Reese and Dick Schultz.

Others Present: Gary Petre — County Administrator; Phil Ristow - Corporation Counsel;-John Molinaro -
County Board Chairman; Lydia Statz, Reporter — Jefferson Daily Union; Tammie Jaeger — Administrative
Assistant-Confidential; Bill Kern — Highway Commissioner; Brian Udovich — Highway Operations Manager;
Norm Barrientos — Barrientos Design; Corey Lapworth — Continuum Architects; Falamak Nourzad —
Continuum Architects; John Goetter — Graef Architects; John Caine — Venture Architects.

Certification of compliance with the Open Meetings Law
The County Administrator reported that the meeting agenda was properly noticed in compliance with
the law.

Review of the Agenda
No changes were made.

Public Comment
None

Approval of the January 16, 2013 Infrastructure Committee meeting minutes
Motion made by Supervisor Jones; Second by Supervisor Kutz to approve the January 16, 2013
Infrastructure Committee meeting minutes as printed. Ayes-All (Motion Carried).

Communications
e List of Architects for RFP
e Email and Map from Delahey Industries regarding asbestos inspection

Discussion and possible action on a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Architectural and Engineering
Services for final site plan and final design of a new main Highway Department facility.

A copy of the RFP was provided for the committee to review. Gary Petre explained that after the RFP is
approved it will be issued. There will be a link on our website which will include previous studies that
were completed. It will also be posted on the Dodge Reporter which is a website that is reviewed by
construction companies and architects.

Motion made by Supervisor Kuhlman; Second by Supervisor Jones to send out the Request for Proposal
(RFP) for Architectural and Engineering Services for the final site plan and design of a new main
Highway Department facility. Ayes-All (Motion Carried).

Discussion and possible action on a proposal by Barrientos Design for architectural and
engineering services for final design of the Highway Department’s Lake Mills Satellite facility.
Gary Petre told the committee that the Highway Committee has reviewed and approved the proposal
from Barrientos Design. Bill Kern explained that the designs for Lake Mills and Concord are identical and
resulted in cost savings. The Highway Committee concurred that because of the tight time frame it is not
feasible to put this project out for an RFP. Barrientos has also completed a large portion of the design so
it is possible that going out with an RFP could end up costing more. The committee agreed that it is not
feasible to start over with another firm.

Motion made by Supervisor Jones; Second by Supervisor Schultz to approve the proposal from
Barrientos Design for architectural and engineering services for final design of the Highway
Department’s Lake Mills Satellite facility based on the feasibility of time and cost savings. Ayes-All
(Motion Carried).



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

Discussion and possible action on Sheriff Annex Building construction project
This item will be put on the next agenda. No action taken.

Status report on the Courthouse Bathroom Remodeling and Security Entrance projects

Both projects were approved by County Board. Phil Ristow and Gary Petre gave the committee an
update on the projects. The committee discussed the parking issue that construction of the security
entrance and closing off the front entrance may cause. No action taken.

Discussion and possible action on the environmental inspection of the old Countryside Home
property

The Committee was provided a summary of the inspection for asbestos that was found on the property.
Phil Ristow said that the company told him that the asbestos that was found was insignificant. The final
report should be available by the end of the week. Gary Petre will distribute the final report as soon as it
is received and it will be discussed at their next committee meeting. No action taken.

Potential items for the Committee’s next meeting

e Approval of the February 19, 2013 Committee meeting minutes

e Discussion and possible action Community Supported Agriculture (CSA) Program

¢ Discussion and possible action on the final environmental inspection report for former Countryside
Home

¢ Discussion and possible action on Sheriff Annex Building construction project

[ J

Set tentative next committee meeting time and date: March 20, 2013 at 10:30 a.m.

Adjourn
Supervisor Kuhlman made a motion to adjourn; Second by Supervisor Jones at 11:30 a.m. Ayes - All
(Motion Carried).



FairShare CSA Coalition Farm<->Biz Toolkit ﬁ— g

Worksite CSA Planning List
for Forming a Relationship with a CSA Farm

Timeline

The earliest to sign up for the season is December or January. Farms will add shares right up until the
season starts in late May or June, however, many farms begin to fill by the end of March. (FairShare's
CSA Open House is held in mid March.)

Program Goal

Get clear on why you want to offer a CSA pick-up for your employees and what your major goals are so
you can tailor your program and choose your farm accordingly. For some companies, CSA augments
wellness goals, for others, it is primarily a community building endeavor. For some, it’s both and more!

Consider if CSA is compatible with your company's culture. Do your employees like to cook (or would
they be interested in learning)? Do they eat out a lot? Do they work late or split shifts; do they work
overtime? What kind of people work at your company?

Will you offer a payroll deduction option?

Will you subsidize your employees' shares or offer any incentives? (FairShare can often help you
brainstorm about appropriate incentives! See below for ideas.)

Survey your employees regarding why they want to join a CSA Farm (see separate file; please customize
to fit your needs). The survey assists people in determining if they are a good fit for the program and
helps determine what reasons are important to your employees regarding joining, so you know how to
market the program internally.

Regarding loyalty to your farm: it's like getting married; it should be a longer term commitment, not
"we're going to farm hop and try a new farm every year" — It takes a while for people to get the hang of
using their CSA shares and to learn to be good CSA members. Also, your strong, sustainable relationship
with your farm relies on a close feedback loop and open lines of communication.

Considerations for Businesses

Meeting the minimum share requirements to start a pick-up site (this varies from farm to farm, but all
farms will require a minimum commitment to establish a new delivery site)

You will need to collect and provide info re: total number of employees and your projections for
participation/# of shares (see survey info below)

Are there other businesses in your building or nearby that you can partner with to reach the
required minimum to start a drop site? (Different farms require different amounts; the smallest
minimum is usually the equivalent of 12 weekly shares.)



FairShare CSA Coalition Farm<->Biz Toolkit

Is your CSA program going to be an "open site," where people could also come in from outside
your business to pick up shares, or a site that is only open to your employees? (This may also be a way
to increase your # of shares to meet minimum box requirements).

Find out the number of employees who are already CSA members. Will those folks switch to the
"work" farm, or continue with their "own" farm?

Communications

Who will communicate with the members/farm? You need someone invested in the success of the
project, someone who is good at communication and organized. Preferably the same contact person all
season.

Their duties might be: sending a reminder email — "don’t’ forget to pick up your share tomorrow from 1-
4 p.m.l"}; dealing with food that is not picked up; sweeping the site once in a while or folding boxes. The
organizer will communicate back with the farm re: pick-ups and how the program is going.

Be clear on roles; you will not need to over-manage this. In fact, once it's launched, it should be very
little work for you! After the employees join the farm, their relationship is directly with the farmer. Be
careful not to micromanage or to insert yourself between the employees and the farm. Employees will
deal directly with the farm regarding sign ups and food issues; they'll get the farm's newsletter, etc. Your
job is to choose a farm, work out delivery logistics, and promote the CSA to your employees. Then,
stand back and let the relationships blossom.

Have the farm check your communications relating to the share or membership, or let the farm handle
that. (It's important to be accurate and not spread misinformation that later needs to be corrected by
you or the farmer; it will save you headaches and time!)

Once your program begins, reach out to your farmer and let him or her know how things are going.
What’s the buzz regarding the program? Are deliveries going smoothly? If there are any issues, handle
them early, before bad word of mouth sours the program. Work together with your farmer. You're a
team!

Physical site:

What day of the week will you schedule the delivery? A 3-hour pick-up window is typical.
Where will food be delivered?

Will the space be heated/cooled?

Is there a loading dock?

Are their stairs or an elevator?

Security — is the door locked? Is it easily opened? Will the delivery driver need a key card?



FairShare CSA Coalition Farm<->Biz Toolkit

You will need someone to manage the site, someone to occasionally clean up husks, break down boxes,
etc.

Can food stay in place over night or does it need to be dealt with/picked up the same day? Is there a
kitchen on site that can store food in a cooler if it is not picked up on time?

Create a plan in advance for what you will do with shares that are not picked up. (Donate to a food
pantry, give food away in the break room, etc.)

Have someone at the pick-up site for the first 2 weeks to help out both the whole and half-share folks.

What workplaces should consider when looking at farms:

Really research the farms! Consider the size of the farm, types of shares; what kind of relationship you
want with your farm. Look into the style, frequency, and method of communication and farm
engagement opportunities that are available {i.e. farm events).

What are the farm's strengths and weaknesses?

To see the types of food the farm provides, you could ask for the previous season's packing lists or for
access to last season's newsletters.

Check a farm's Facebook and webpage when investigating the culture; see photos of shares, how much
they communicate with members, etc.

We discourage you from comparing farms by price since it’s very difficult to compare apples to apples
due to delivery frequency, share size, and the “added value” of gleaning days, bulk purchase options,
on-farm events, and other factors that add value to your share.

When you do compare the price of shares, use the price divided by the number of weeks — so you are
comparing farms based on the weekly charge. Farm delivery seasons will vary.

Length of season and timing of season; does the farm offer extended season shares or early spring
shares?

What types of shares do they offer (produce, meat, eggs, cheese, etc.)? Attention: CSA Health Insurance
Rebates cover veggie shares only.

Size of share — Some farms are known for packing large shares, some for packing lighter shares; ask your
farmer what is typical — number of pounds, number of varieties, etc.

Types of veggies — Some farms do more "standard" veggies; others throw in more "exotic" veggies; are
your employees adventurous eaters who want to try new veggies, or would they prefer more typical
fare?



FairShare CSA Coalition Farm<->Biz Toolkit

Engagement with members - Do you plan on volunteering at your farm, or attending farm events? If yes,
check out the farm's level of engagement with its members. Do they offer volunteer options, farm
events, stuff for kids? How easy is it to visit your farm?

Location of farm — How close is it to your workplace? If you're not planning to visit the farm, does
distance matter?

Using CSA to build community at the workplace

What are some ideas to incentivize your program? (See separate handout)

R a cookbook or $25 off the cost of a share.

Blog your experience interviewing or choosing a farm; share photos.

Create an informal FB group for participating employees as a means of easily share recipes and photos.
Organize CSA potlucks or a food movie/potluck.

Give your group a fun name.

Invite the farmer to a Lunch 'n' Learn

Incentivize through Wellness programs; perhaps offer a cooking demo? Make something from the
shares and offer tastings? (FairShare can help you set up cooking classes and cooking demonstrations.)

Encourage your members to visit the farm's website and FB page and to read the farm's newsletter.

Ask the Farmer....

Are you willing to come to our business and do a presentation?
How involved do you want to be with our project?

What is your farm's policy for handling any food complaints?

Are you willing to offer an event on your farm for our employees?
How easy will it be for our employees to visit your farm?

Evaluation of program — query your employees 1 month after deliveries start and at the end of the

season {compare them):

How satisfied are you with your shares? Scale of 1 to 5, with 5 being the highest
Are you having any problems? (Fill in the blank)

Do you feel your share is the right size for your household? Yes, no, { don't know



FairShare CSA Coalition Farm<->Biz Toolkit

How much of your share would you estimate you use each week? Please circle:
100 percent
80 percent
< 50 percent
< 25 percent
Do you notice any health benefits from eating more fresh produce? (Fill in the blank)
Do you have any questions, comments or concerns you'd like to share? (Fill in the blank)

Do you plan to sign up for CSA next year? Yes, no, undecided



FairShare CSA Coalition Farm<->Biz Toolkit

FAQ Community Supported Agriculture for Worksites

1. What is a CSA?

A CSAs a partnership between a farm and a community of supporters (e.g., employees, etc). CSA
members pay up front at the start of the season for a "share" of the crops that are grown. Inreturn,
the farm provides each member with a healthy supply of fresh, locally grown food each week.
Worksites can arrange to have the food delivered to a specific location, depending on the farmer’s
drop-off route. CSA is a mutually beneficial relationship that keeps Wisconsin farmers on the land,
provides the freshest food to farm members, and builds strong, vibrant communities.

2. What is a CSA Worksite Program?

CSA in the workplace is a program that will provide you the opportunity to receive a fresh box of
local produce (or, with some farms, meat, eggs, cheese or other specialty farm products) delivered
right to your work every week. Each share contains a variety of the freshest produce and products
from your local farm. Many organizations are incorporating CSAs into their employee wellness
programs; it is a great way to encourage people to eat more fruits and vegetables.

3. Why should I take advantage of a CSA?

By participating, employees have the convenience of fresh, reasonably priced produce delivered to
their worksite. Employees will also have access to recipes and cooking tips to help them learn how to
prepare the produce they receive in their box.

Growers receive better prices for their crops and gain financial security because the farmer knows
what their typical weekly sales will be so they know how much to plant.

Shareholders pay less for fresher, organically grown produce and sustainable farm products and
keep hard earned dollars circulating in our local economy. But most important of all, you will know
your farmer and how your food is grown, and you join in the community sharing the risk and rewards
and being an active participant in the viability of your farm.

4.Can | choose what items | want in my box or order a half share?

The boxes are assembled at the farm, and depend on the seasonal crops available. You cannot choose
which items you want or do not want in each box. However, it is possible to sign up for a half or every-
other-week share or share a full/every-week share with a colleague. If there are any items you don't
like, you can ask a co-worker to trade for something you like better. Many workplaces create a swap
box where people leave items they don't like and take items they like better.

5. What kinds of produce can | expect in my box?

Vegetable CSA growers often offer shareholders a diversity of seasonal vegetables, herbs, and
sometimes, fruits. Over the summer and early fall growing season in southern Wisconsin, produce



FairShare CSA Coalition Farm<->Biz Toolkit

typically includes spinach, lettuce, greens, cauliflower, broccoli, cabbage, Brussels sprouts, beets,
cilantro, parsley, garlic, green and yellow onions, carrots, spinach, kale, zucchini, green beans, sweet
and hot peppers, peas, tomatoes, cucumbers, eggplant, basil, kohlrabi, radishes, potatoes, leeks,
hard squashes, watermelon, and sometimes strawberries, raspberries or apples. Farms typically
supply a list of their crops and when they are in season. Meat CSA farmers offer unique
arrangements and provide a variety of cuts throughout the year. Other specialty products (eggs,
cheese, flowers, etc.) vary according to the product.

6. How much does it cost to participate?

For one vegetable share (one box), the total amount often averages about $550-$650 over a 20- to
24-week growing season (June-October), depending on the farm. That breaks down to about $22-
$32/week. Most farms offer the option of a half share or every-other-week share at a lower price, and
employees often split a share. In addition, employees may be eligible for the CSA Health Insurance
Rebate of $50-$200 a year via the following insurers: Dean Health, GHC - SCW, Physicians Plus, Unity
Health. Some employers offer payroll deduction for CSA shares. Specialty product shares are not
currently eligible for the Health Insurance Rebates, and prices vary according to the product type.

7. How much produce comes in a box?

Each vegetable share contains a variety of items. Shares are typically lighter in the spring and heavier
as the season progresses. For a family of four, one full share is plenty for a week's worth of cooking.
For two people, it might be more than enough produce for a week, but, with a little creativity
(freezing, etc.), a full share can enable year-round cooking with fresh food from your farm! If you're
vegetarians or heavy vegetable eaters, a full share might be just right.

8. Where can | find a CSA?

FairShare CSA Coalition is comprised of 49 CSA farms in southern Wisconsin. Their website,
www.csacoalition.org, lists farm profiles and a farm locator map, along with links to area CSA health
insurance rebate programs. If you live outside Wisconsin, Northern lllinois or Northeastern lowa, find
CSA farms via Local Harvest at http://www.localharvest.org/.

9. Other southern Wisconsin resources for eating locally:

Edible Madison - http://ediblemadison.com/

REAP Food Group - http://www.reapfoodgroup.org/
Dane County Farmers Markets - http://dcfm.org/
Local Harvest - http://www.localharvest.org/

Local Thyme - http://www.localthyme.com/

10. What are the benefits of eating locally?



FairShare CSA Coalition Farm<->Biz Toolkit

Buying locally grown produce enhances your quality of life though nutritional benefits and the
satisfaction of harmonizing your purchasing power and values. Eating locally supports family farms
AND your community, by creating local jobs and economic growth. Local food also benefits the
environment. On average, food travels 1,500 miles before reaching your plate, using precious
resources for transportation, refrigeration, and distribution along the way. By becoming a CSA
member, you join the growing local food movement and help to create a more secure local food
system.

~adapted from a document originally produced by the Carver County Public Health & Environment
Division, Chaska, Minnesota



#9
RESOLUTION NO. 2013-

Resolution to contract for professional design services for the Highway Department —
Lake Mills Satellite Shop

WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Highway Department and the Wisconsin Department of
Transportation (WisDOT) discussed the need for additional salt storage facilities in the Lake Mills
area, and

WHEREAS, the potential for funding a salt storage shed in conjunction with a highway
improvement project on ‘Interstate 94° near Lake Mills was discussed, and

WHEREAS, the WisDOT ‘Interstate 94” project was ‘advanced’ for construction leaving a
very short timeframe to complete salt shed design plans for inclusion in the project, and

WHEREAS, Jefferson County had previous experience contracting with an architectural
design firm (Barrientos Design) that was familiar with the site and potential plans for the area from
previous facility study work, and

WHEREAS, the Highway Committee on December 6, 2011 authorized contracting with
Barrientos Design to complete the salt shed design and a preliminary master plan for the WisDOT
property and the adjacent property the Highway Department was recommending for purchase, and

WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Highway Department and Barrientos Design worked with
WisDOT to develop a new salt shed design and preliminary site layout in Lake Mills at the
Interstate 94 and State Highway 89 interchange, and

WHEREAS, the design and plans were accepted by WisDOT and incorporated into their
2012 construction project on Interstate 94, and

WHEREAS, the salt shed, site work, and the access road were funded and built by WisDOT
in 2012, providing salt storage at the location for both county and state highways, and

WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Highway Department needed additional site design work,
zoning reviews, and annexation approvals from the City of Lake Mills to construct a satellite
facility on the adjacent county-owned parcel, and

WHEREAS, the additional planning and design needs were discussed at the May 30, 2012
Joint Highway Committee and Infrastructure Committee meeting, and

WHEREAS, the committees reviewed a proposal from Barrientos Design to utilize the site
data completed to date, and to provide the additional design services needed by the City of Lake
Mills for annexation and site approval on the county-owned parcel, and

WHEREAS, the Highway Committee and Infrastructure Committees both agreed to
contract with Barrientos Design for the additional architectural work needed, and



WHEREAS, the site planning work has been completed by Barrientos Design and the
Wisconsin Department of Administration has finalized and approved the annexation request for the
parcel, and

WHEREAS, Barrientos Design provided a proposal to complete the final architectural and
engineering design services, construction documents, project bidding, and construction
administration for the sum listed below:

Consultant Proposal Cost
Barrientos Design $77.215.00

WHEREAS, the Highway Department staff reviewed the proposal and recommended to the
Infrastructure Committee to accept the proposal based on the firms existing work to-date on the site,
the quality of work completed so far on the site work and salt shed design work, the experience on
similar projects by the consultant on highway design facilities, and the consultants knowledge and
work relationship with the City of Lake Mills, Jefferson County, and WisDOT staff, and

WHEREAS, the Highway Committee and Infrastructure Committee reviewed the
recommendation and both the Highway Committee and Infrastructure Committee approved the
recommendation to contract with Barrientos Design for the remaining design work, bid documents,
and construction administration for the project,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Highway Department is authorized to enter into a
contract with Barrientos Design for $77,215.00 for the remaining design work, bidding, and
construction administration for the Lake Mills Satellite Shop.

Fiscal Note: Funds for the design work will come from the Highway Department facility design
Sfunds in account #53284.

AYES
NOES
ABSTAIN
ABSENT
Requested by
Highway Committee

Bill Kern: 03-05-13



What is a community supported
agriculture (CSA)?

CSA is a farmerconsumer partnership.
CSA members make a commitment up
front to a farm for an entire growing sea-
son by buving a ‘share’ in the seasons har
vest. In return, [armers supply members
with a weekly supply of fresh vegetables
throughout the growing season.

What are the benefits of joining?

° Knowing vour farmers, where your
food comes from and how it is
grown

° Enjoving a season’s supply of fresh,

organic, and local vegetables and trv-
ing some new ones!

° Eating with the seasons; learning
how to use and enjov a wide variety
of delicious, fresh veggies

° Supporting the local agriculture
economy
° Reducing the environmental impact

of growing and shipping food from
afar

® $50 to $300 Rebate. Physicians Plus
[nsurance, Group Health Coopera-
tive, Dean Health Plan, and Unity
Health Plan offer rebates for CSA
membership. Visit the FairShare
website to see if vou're eligible.

(www.csacoalition.org)

Memberships
Spring Shares (April-May)

The Early Spring Share provides 4 weeks of
lush salad greens, cooking greens and early
spring veggies. $150.00

Summer Shares (June—Cctober):

Our Standard Share size will provide veggies for
an average family of 4 with a nice variety of veg
gies and herbs throughout the season. $590.00

The Small Share offers smaller quantities of
produce with a similar selection of veggies as the
standard share, but not always as much variety.

$400.00

A Large Share is geared towards larger (amilies
or those that like to do a little preserving. The
large size will be approximately 112 times the
standard share offering greater quantities of the

weekly produce. $800.00

Egg Share members will receive 1 dozen or-
ganic, free-range eges everv-otherweek for a toral

of 10 dozen eges over the CSA season. $45.00

Winter Shares (Nov.—Feb.)

A fabulous selection of cool weather greens,
herbs, root crops, squash and other storage vege-
tables. Approximately 10 deliveries signup
begins mid summer

More information and membership forms are available
at our Website. Check online for early sign-up discount!
{Prior to Jan. 1, 2013)

Join us on Facebook!

Sign-Up
Include:
Name, address, phone, g¢-mail, and

pick-up location
Make check out to:
High Meadow Farm
Send to:
NG967 South La
Johnson Creek, W1 53038

Payment Options
e Pay Total— Due with sign up
e Extended Pavment— Enclose 4 checks
dated today’s date, May 1, June 1, and July
1. Each check should equal oneforth of
the total; all checks must be sent.

s Worker Share— Work 4 to 5 hours per week in
exchange for your share. Call or email for more

information and availability.

Pariner Shares Program
This program is offered by the FairShare
CSA Coalition provides financial assistance
for families to ensure that they can receive
healthy, nutritious, locally grown organic
food through a CSA while supporting farm-
ers in southern Wisconsin. If vou need fi-
nancial assistance or if vou would like to
make a donation to the program, visit the
FairShare website at www.csacoalition.org or
call them at 608-236-0300 for more informa-

tion.



Basil Lettuce
Beans Melons
Broccoli Onions
(Cabbage  Pac Choi
Carrots Parsnips
Celeriac Peas
Celery Peppers
Chives Potatoes
Com Pumpkins
Cucumber Radishes
Eggplant L?vaeans
Fennel Edamame}
Ga'rlic: Spisach
G ) Squash

reer:; Sweer Potatoes
Eot,:r ) Swiss Chard

e Tomatoes
Kale]  Turnips Support Loeal
Kohlzabi Wa&ermekpn farms and
Lecks And more! farmers

oS,

<

et Qreit

o

About High Meadow Farm

Growing healthy, delicious food for our family
and friends is an important part of our his-
tory.  We farm using organic practices that
respect the health and nutritional value of
vour food and reduce the impact of agricul-
ture on the environment .

We invite you to consider being a part of our
certified organic family farm and share our
garden’s wonderful bounty with us!

We also have available free-range roasting
chickens, eggs and raw, unfiltered honey!

Visit our Website to learn more!

Thursdays 4:30-7:30pm
Lake Mills
Jetferson
Fort Atkinson

Watertown
High Meadow Farm

Community Supported

Agriculture
Weekly vegetable subscription information
2013
o Eat fresh organic veggies
e Delivered Weekly
»  Recipes and farm news
s  Farm events and festivals
s«  Buy a share of the 2013 harvest!

(920) 699-3658
NG6967 South Lane
Johnson Creek, W1 53038

highmeadowfarmesa@gmail.com

www.highmeadowfarmcsa.com












13000 W, Bluemound Rd.
Elm Grove, W1 53122

Delahey IIldllStl‘ieS, Inc. (262) 8219296

Fax: (262) 821-1709
Asbestos Response Specialists + Inspections » EPA Certified

ASBESTOS NESHAP DEMOLITION
INSPECTION REPORT

Former Nursing Home Complex
1425 Wisconsin Drive, Jefferson, W1
Former Nursing Home/Farm Buildings

Prepared For:

Mr. Gary Petre/Mr. Phil Ristow
Jefferson County
Jetferson County Courthouse
320 South Main Street
Jefferson, WI 53549

Prepared By:
Delahey Industries, Inc.
(262) 821-9296

Delahey Industries, Inc. Project #13006
March 2013



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION-INSPECTION PROTOCOL .....ocovviiiiiiiniiiniin page 2
INSPECTION LIMITATIONS/NOTES ..o, page 3
FACILITY/BUILDING DESCRIPTIONS ....ccoiiiiiiiii i page 5
PAINT SAMPLING — CEMENTITIOUS MATERIALS ..., page 6
SITE DPRAWING

APPENDIX A

Building A (wing 1, wing 2, wing 3) - Inspection findings; laboratory documentation

APPENDIX B

Building B - Inspection findings; laboratory documentation
Building C - Inspection findings; laboratory documentation
Building D - Inspection findings; laboratory documentation
Hazardous materials summaries Buildings A - D

Building E and E1 (addition) - Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation

APPENDIX C

Building F - Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Building G - Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Building H- Inspection findingsfhazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Building P - Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation

Building J - Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Building L - Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Building O - Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation

Buildings I, K, M, N - Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation

APPENDIX D

Certifications

Page|l



INTRODUCTION - INSPECTION PROTOCOL,

In accordance with the project proposal submitted to Mr. Gary Petre of Jefferson County
designated buildings at the former nursing home site (1425 Wisconsin Drive, Jefferson, W)
were inspected to identify suspected asbestos containing building materials (ACBM) prior to the
demolition of these buildings. All samples of suspect material were collected in a random matter
in gencral accordance with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and National Emission
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) guidelines (EPA 40 CFR 61 Subpart M),
WDNR Chapter NR 447 Guidelines and OSHA CFR 1926.

In compliance with OSHA, WDNR and EPA sampling protocol, buildings (or wings of
buildings) constructed at different times or with different materials are sampled
independently. Each building at this site was identified by an alphabetical letter as
designated on the included drawing and sampled in accordance with the aforementioned
guidelines.

Inspections included visual observation, bulk sampling and laboratory analysis of
interior/exterior suspect ACBM. A minimum of three (3) bulk samples of each homogeneous
material were collected. Additional samples of surfacing materials may be collected based on
material quantity. Three (3) independent “none detected” analysis results of homogeneous
samples was used to demonstrate the materials did not contain greater than 1% asbestos (OSHA
29 CFR 1910.12). Homogeneous samples were analyzed until a sample positive was
determined.  Additional samples of the homogeneous suspect materials were not analyzed.
Asbestos containing materials are defined as products containing greater than (>) 1% of asbestos
as analyzed by polarized light microscopy (PLM). In addition, ACBM are designated as:

1. Friable ashestos - material which can be crumbled, pulverized or reduced to powder by hand
pressure.

2. Category I nonfriable - includes resilient floor coverings, asphalt roofing products, gaskets
and packings.

3. Category 1I nonfriable - any nonfriable ACM that is not in Category | (i.e. transite siding
material),

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Physically inaccessible wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment
may contain undetected ACM. These and other inaccessible areas are required to be under the
scrutiny of a competent person, as applicable, during demolition or renovation to verify that no
previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time of this inspection (January & February,
2013), every accessible area of the buildings was inspected.

Samples of suspected ACBM were collected by trained and certified personnel, using a core
sampling device or equivalent method, individually packaged and labeled with the sample
number. The sample information was then recorded on an Asbestos Survey Sample Assessment
Form and listed on a Chain of Custody Form for delivery to the laboratory. Prior to sampling,
the area was misted with an amended water solution to minimize fiber release during the sample
process. '

Page| 2



Suspect material samples were submitted for analysis to AmeriSci Richmond, Inc., a laboratory
that successfully participates in the AIHA Proficiency Analytical Testing (PAT) program. The
type and quantity (percentage) of asbestos are identified by polarized light microscopy (PLM)
following preparation and identification protocols recommended by the National Institute for
Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) and the National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation
Program (NVLAP). In order to keep sample analysis costs to a minimum, testing of the
minimum three (3) samples of each homogeneous materials collected was performed until a
sample “positive” was achieved. (Additional samples of some materials were collected based on
surface quantity to insure sampling compliance). Additional samples were not analyzed once a
positive result was determined.

Analytical “Point Counting”: In compliance with WDNR protocol, samples with “trace”

<1%) amounts of asbestos were further analyzed using the “point counting” analysis protocol to
y g P 4 ysis p
determine the percentage of asbestos.

Inspection Limitations/Notes:

» A previous asbestos survey was performed by Residential and Industrial Asbestos
Removal, LLC on these buildings. The sampling protocol of this survey was not
compliant with EPA, WDNR and OSHA sampling guidelines nor were all suspect ACM
and potentially hazardous materials sampled/collected.

o Destructive demolition was not permitted by the owner.

e Some areas of mechanical tunnels/crawl] spaces/caverns were physically inaccessible due
to flooding, permanent cement block barriers, or other means.  These arcas will be
addressed after further discussion with the owner’s representative.,

e The built-up asphalt roofing materials/rubber roofs in good condition were assumed to
contain asbestos. Overall, the built-up asphalt roofs, single shingled roofs and rubber
roofs were in good intact condition at the time of this survey.

¢ Freezing interior water and heavy exterior snow limited safe access on many days. The
diesel gencrator house behind the loading dock was not accessible at the time of this
inspection.

» Flooding and freezing ice from damaged roof and leaking roof drains covered much of
the flooring in Building A. This caused delay to access in these areas for safety reasons.

o There appeared to be deep snow covered well pits in some areas of the site. Caution
should be used when traveling this site.

e The elevator penthouses were not accessible during this inspection. Assumptions of
asbestos containing materials present in the penthouses were based on experience.

Page |3



There are 3 large transformers easily visible on exterior of this site.

Fire doors (often filled with magnesia asbestos containing material) contain a 17 x 4”

metal on the interior door frame side of the fire door. This metal tag is pop-riveted on the
door.

Page | 4



FACILITY & BUILDING DESCRIPTIONS

Facility Information — Nursing home/farm buildings

Building A (west side nursing home): This building built in approximately 1966 was
constructed of brick and cement block with cement columns. It was used as a nursing home
consisting of three floors and basement and is approximately 93,000 square feet,

Building B (cast side nursing home): This building consisting of three floors was constructed
of brick and cement block with cement columns and a flat roof. It is approximately 25,500
square feet and was constructed circa 1941/1951.

Building C (administrative): This building was constructed of brick and cement block with
cement columns; is approximately 21,000 square feet and built in 1973. The building consisted
of two floors and a basement.

Building D: This three story building was constructed of brick and cement block with cement
columns; is approximately 33,000 square feet and built in 1954,

Building E (MIS building): This building was constructed in two phases. This is a 2-story
building with basement constructed of cement block, brick, cement columns and a flat roof.
Interior demolition had been in progress. It is approximately 6,000 square feet with a flat asphalt
roof. Construction date is unknown.

Building ¥ (boiler house & laundry facility}: This building is a material parts storage building
with offices and additional storage. It is constructed on a split-level concrete floor with cement
block walls, cement columns, book tile arched with asphalt built-up roofing material. The walk
able tunnel entrance below other buildings opens in the southeast corner. It is approximately
13,285 square feet and was constructed in approximately 1905. :

Building G {small barn/cold storage}: This building is constructed of cement slab on grade
with cement block walls with a flat pad and tar built-up roof. The south side of the building has
been partially demolished. It was constructed pre-1957 and is approximately 1600 square feet.

Building H (storage garage): This building was constructed of cement block with a flat roof, It
is approximately 5200 square feet and was constructed pre-1957.

Buildings 1, J. K (cement slabs): All that remains of these prior standing buildings are cement
slabs and approximately 3-4 foot high field stone or cement block knee walls. The total square
footage of all three slabs is approximately 720 square feet.

Page| 5



Building I, (feed barn/hay storage): The east side is the only remaining standing side of this
building. This section is approximately 675 square feet. The bulk of the west side of this
building has been demolished. The remaining structure is constructed of cement block and a
collapsed pitched roof. The standing (west side) is approximately 6100 square feet and consists
of slab on grade with remaining knee wall cement block (approximately 3 feet high). It was
constructed approximately 1957.

Building M: All that remains of this structure is a concrete slab (approximately 6300 square
feet). Constructed prior to 1957,

Building N (concrete slab): Smokehouse and removed pre-1957. All that remains is concrete
slab on grade.

Building O (calf barn): This building consists of a metal Quonset hut over concrete on grade.
Constructed circa 1965. This building is approximately 5200 square feet and appears unstable.

Building P: This building appeared to serve as a day care center. [t consists of two Spancrete
floors and a partial basement. The walls are constructed of cement block and brick with a flat
asphalt roof. The construction date is unknown. This building is approximately $700 square
feet.

Siles: Six silos are located on the west side of this property. All of them have been removed
down to a 3-4 foot height.

Walk able underground funnels/crawi spaces/caverns: There are some walk able mechanical
tunnels which extend from building A-F and the boiler room. There is approximately 1200
linear feet of 6” and under asbestos containing thermal systems insulation in crawl spaces or
risers (physically inaccessible) of this tunnel. Part of the tunnel was flooded at the time of this
inspection and the locations have yet to be determined. Some crawl spaces/caverns are
inaccessible. Additional discovery in these tunnels must be performed prior to demolition.

Paint Sampling:

Delahey Industries collected interior and exterior paint samples from cementitious materials
only (concrete, brick, cement block and field stone material).

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines *lead bearing paint” as any paint or

other surface coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead
metal.

Page| 6



Some exterior painted cementitious materials did not meet the definition of lead (Pb), however
most interior paints arc lead (Pb) bearing. Due to the circumstances of numerous paints
containing lead (Pb) paint, Delahey Industries recommends all cementitious painted materials
meet the state definition of lead (Pb) paint. As well, often one side of walls was covered in lead
{Pb) paint and the opposite side was covered in non-lead (Pb) bearing paint. Materials with lead
{Pb) bearing paint adhered may not be recycled.

Inspected by Joha Hey, David Muhar & John Ramstack
January/February, 2013

x
SN LQ\
-?%Tmey, Inspector 11) #Ah}zsu

Lericd] FZeKarc

David A. Muhar, Inspector 1D #A11-136

oy

John Ramstack? Inspector 1D #AI1-170778

Page |7



(.
AST
(PROPANE) .
O @ Building P

Wing 3

PARKING LOT
FORMER GENERATOR
BUILDING AND AST \ E1 addition
& /o4
wing 1 <Z A
wing 2
PARKING 10T

Site Map
1425 Wisconsin Drive, Jefferson

Jefferson County, Wisconsin
March 2013

There are walk able tunnels throughout most buildings.

Please refer to Delahey industries’ inspection report
#13006, pages 5-6 for building descriptions.



APPENDIX A

Building A (wing 1, wing 2, wing 3) - Inspection findings; laboratory documentation
Building B - Inspection findings; laboratory documentation
Building C - Inspection findings; laboratory documentation
Building D - Inspection findings; faboratory documentation
Hazardous materials building summaries A - D



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, W1
Building A - Wing 1

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)
(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location,

Building A — wing 1

+ off-white spray-on fireproofing * bronze colored floor leveler

+ drywall + plaster on sheet rock & drywall

* 17 x 1”7 ceramic floor gray grout + 4”7 x 4” green ceramic cove base grout

+ hard plasters on columns + 47 x 47 green ceramic cove base gold adhesive
* joint compound * bronze cove base adhesive

+ 4”7 x 4” tan ceramic wall tile grout * 4” x 4” ceramic wall tile gold adhesive

» yellow ceramic floor tile gray grout * 47 x 4” green ceramic wall tile white grout

* black vibration damper » seam caulk on metal duct (green)

* tan seam caulk « rust colored fire caulk

» interior black window caulk * brown insulation paper & gold adhesive

Building A exterior sampling (all wings):

* gray expansion caulk on seams + gray exterior window caulk
« white hard plaster + brick mortar

* No exterior window glazing was present.

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestps

Ashestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
Assumed inline and pipe fittings Friable Within enclosed wall cavities To be determined
R
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category 1l Throughout alt wings 26 panels/boxes
Assumed electrical transite panel Category 11 | Roof top elevator penthouse 1 panel (2 breaks)

Assumed fire doors Category | Throughout all wings 32 fire doors

Page |A 1l




Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead

(Pb) paint analysis:

_ Paint Sampling Summary o
Material _ Surface/Location Lead (Pb) by weight
Cream paint Cement block basement interior <0.02
Red paint Cement block stairs 0.08
Yellow paint Plaster block wall 0.04
Cream/black paint Metal fire door C0.03
Blacld/red paint Book tile 23.67

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal. Based on the analytical
results, all paints on walls and cetlings should be assumed to be lead (Pb) bearing in this building interior.

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of'this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the assumed enclosed inline and pipe fittings (if present in building cavities),
assumed Category 1l electrical panels, assumed electrical transite panels and brakes, and assumed
fire doors be removed prior to demolition. These materials must be removed by persons trained and
certified by the Wisconsin Department of Health Services to respond to asbestos containing
materials.

‘Tt is not mandatory that the rubber/tar/ asphalt roofing material be removed prior to demolition, as

these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey (Category I non-friable
ACM). However, the material quantities must be listed on the demolition notice filed with the
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the building.

Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category I, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

Page |A 2



5. Recycling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious
materials, Category 1 asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category 1 asbestos
containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recyeled.

6. Many of the stairwells in all three A wings are painted in lead (Pb) paint.

Page |A3



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, Wl
Building A — Wing 2

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)

(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building A — wing 2

« rust colored fire caulk + 47 x 4” green ceramic wall tile gold adhesive
» 4” x 4” tan ceramic wall tile gold adhesive  + 4” x 4” quarry tile gray grout

» ceramic tile cove base gold adhesive « bronze cove base adhesive

* black cove base adhesive » bronze floor leveler

+ white joint compound « hard plaster on columns

* hard plaster on sheet rock * black vibration damper

» circular duct vibration damper » quarry tile adhesive

» light gray spray-on fireproofing « drywall on cement block

« tan steel door sound barrier * 2’ x 4’ rough white ceiling tile

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location ©Approximate Quantity
Assumed rubber/asphalt roofing ; 42,838 square feet
material Non-friable Roof (all wings combined)
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category 1] Throughout all wings 35 panels

Roeof top elevator _
penthouse 1 panet (2 breaks)

Assumed fire doors Category 1 Throughout all wings 32 fire doors

Assumed electrical transite panel Category 11

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1. This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.

Page | A4




These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

2. It is mandatory that the assumed Category 11 electrical panels, assumed electrical transite panels
and brakes and assumed fire doors be removed prior to demolition. These materials must be removed
by persons trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of Health Services to respond to
asbestos containing materials,

3. It is not mandatory that the non-friable rubber/asphalt roofing material be removed prior to
demolition, as these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey
(Category I non-friable ACM). However, the material quantities must be listed on the demolition
notice filed with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the
buiiding. '

4. Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category 1, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demeolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

5. Many of the stairwells in all three A wings are painted in lead (Pb) paint.

Page |A S



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, W1
Building A —~ Wing 3

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials,

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)
(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building A — wing 3

+ glass block mortar + interior cement block mortar
* 47 x 4” quarry tile grout : + green glazed block mortar

+ hard plasters * 18”7 x 18” ceramic tile grout
* terrazzo flooring » expansion joint mortar

» gray block patch + 127 x 12" rough ceiling tile
» dark brown rubber hosing adhesive « tan ceiling tile glue pads

» brown cove base adhesive « light tan floor leveler

+ white boiler door gasket + chimney fire brick

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materiais

Material Dcscriptien Category Location Approximate Quantity
Chimney door gray sealant Category | Boiler room door 2 square feet
Assumed rubber/asphalt roofing . 42 838 square feet
material NOﬁ*fllablC Roof {all wings combined)
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category [1 Throughout atl wings 35 panels
’ i e mane Roof top elevator ]
Assumed electrical transite panel Category I penthouse 1 panel (2 breaks)
Assumed fire doors Category | Througheut all wings 42 fire doors

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1. This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as

Page |A6



applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

2. It is mandatory that the chimney door gray scalant, assumed Category 11 electrical panels, assumed
electrical transite panels and brakes and assumed fire doors be removed prior to demolition. These
materials must be removed by persons trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of Health
and Family Services to respond to asbestos containing materials.

3. It is not mandatory that the non-friable rubber/asphalt roofing material be removed prior to
demolition, as these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey
{Category I non-friable ACM). However, the material quantities must be listed on the demolition
notice filed with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the
building.

4. Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category I, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

5. Many of the stairwells in all three A wings are painted in lead (Pb) paint.

Page 1AV



Jefferson Nursing Home Site

1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, WI

Building B

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect

materials,

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)

(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See

sample log for detailed sample location.

Building B

* book tile mortar-

* pyro bar block

+ drywall/joint compound

» troweled on fire stop

* black ceramic tile mortar base
+ interior gray window caulk

« light tan heat pump caulk on z-strips

« 127 x 127 ceiling tile brown glue pads
» heat pump black vibration damper

* 4”7 x 4”7 salmon ceramic wall tile grout
» cooler wall plaster & black mastic

» black granular insulation
+ gold carpet mastic over tile

Building B exterior sampling:
» gray exterior window caulk
+ gray expansion joint caulk

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

* hard plasters

+ pyro bar joint compound

« terrazzo flooring

» 127 x 12” white smooth pinhole ceiling tile

* black ceramic cove tile grout
« gray heat pump duct sealant

+ gold cove base adhesive on drywall

= dark gray wall fire patch

o 47 % 4 salmon ceramic wall tile mortar base
* tan multi-size ceramic floor tile grout

* black vapor paper

« black floor mastic & cork

« brick mortar

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
Assumed rubber/asphalt roofing Non-friable Roof 12,768 square feet
material
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category Il Throughout & roof 21 panels
Assumed electrical transite panel Category Il Rooftop penthouse 1 panel (2 breaks)
Assumed fire doors Category | Throughout 30 fire doors

Page A8




Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead
(Pb) paint analysis:

- Paint Sampling Summary . ' R
Material N Surface/Location 1 Lead:(Pb) by weight
Gray paint Metal fire door <(.02
Interior blue/cream paint Cement block stairwell 0.08

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal. Based on the analytical
results, all paints on walls and ceilings should be assumed to be lead (Ph) bearing in this building interior.

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition fo verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the assumed electrical panels, assumed electrical transite panels and brakes,
assumed Category 11 electrical panels and assumed fire doors be removed prior to demolition. These
materials must be removed by persons trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of Health
Services to respond 1o asbestos containing materials.

It is not mandatory that the non-friable rubber/asphalt roofing material be removed prior to
demolition, as these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey
(Category 1 non-friable ACM). However, the material quantities must be listed on the demolition
notice filed with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the
building.

Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category 1, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demblition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

Recycling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious
materials, Category | asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.

Page |A 9



Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category I asbestos
containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recycled. ‘

Page 1A 10



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, WI
Building C

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)
(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building C

* vibration damper + 47 x 47 white ceramic wall tile grout

* 4” x 4” white ceramic wall tile adhesive  » 17 x 1” multi-colored ceramic floor tile grout
» stair tread adhesive - e gray interior window caulk

* interior gray window glazing + cove base brown adhesive

» interior cement block mortar + 2’ x 27 white pinhole ceiling tile

+ drywall/joint compound* + hard plasters

* tan terrazzo flooring » light gray terrazzo flooring

* troweled on fire barrier

Building C exterior sampling
+ multi-colored stone face panels + gray window caulk
* brick mortar

*Note: The drywall/joint compound initially analyzed with “trace” amounts of asbestos. Further point

count analysis of these materials indicated the asbestos was <1% and therefore is not defined as
asbestos containing.

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Ashestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
Light purple sink sound barrier Category 11 Basement kitchen 2 sinks
Assumed magnesia and aircell pipe Erisble Crawl spaces 1,000-2,000 linear feect

Crawl spaces/tunnels

wrap insulation (6" & under)
{much inaccessible)

To be determined

Assumed rubber/asphalt roofing Non-friable Roof 9,296 square feet
material ’
Assumed ¢lectrical panels/boxes Category 11 Throughout 24 panels

Page {A 11




Asbestos Containing Materials
Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
Assumed electrical transite panel Category II Rooftap penthouse ! panels
Assumed fire doors Category | Throughout 28 fire doors

Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfaéing materials were sampled for lead
(Pb) paint analysis:

_ Paint Sampling Summary . - _ R LRI
Material “Surface/Location ' [ Lead'(Pb) by weight
Cream/tan paint Cement column 0.06
Yellow paint Cement block walls <0.02
Light brown paint Cement colurmns <(0.02
Blue/tan paint Cement block 0.22

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254,11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal. Based on the analytical
results, all paints on walls and ceilings should be assumed to be lead (Pb) bearing in this building interior.

Inspection Notes/Response Recomnmendations:

1.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the sinks with sound barriers, assumed pipe wrap insulation in tunnel crawl
spaces, assumed Category 11 electrical panels, assumed electrical transite panels and brakes and
assumed fire doors be removed prior to demolition. These materials must be removed by persons
trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of Health Services to respond to asbestos
containing materials.

It is not mandatory that the non-friable rubber/asphalt roofing material be removed prior to
demolition, as these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey
(Category I non-friable ACM). However, the material quantities must be listed on the demolition
notice filed with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the
building.

Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category 1, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the

Page |A 12



USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted,

Recycling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious
materials, Category I asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category I asbestos
containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recycled.

Page 1A 13



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, W1
Building D

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials,

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)
(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building D
+ gray window glazing * brown reinforced concrete paper
* quarry tile grout * book tile mortar
* brown glue pucks + cement block mortar
* pyro bar * hard plasters
+ 127 x 12” wormhole ceiling tile * black wall waterproofing
* dark tan cove base mastic * tan multi-colored floor tile mortar base
* vellow ceramic railing tile mortar base + hard plaster over insulation
* brown insulation * black stink block
+ 2” x 2’ white ceiling tile » metal pan ceiling tile black vapor paper
* black insulation backing * 47 % 47 yellow ceramic wall tile white grout
* white caulk on yellow ceramic wall tile » silver back duct insulation

Building D exterior sampling:
* brick mortar * gray window caulk
* tan troweled-on plaster * tan expansion caulk

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
Black floor tile mastic Non-friable Thl(ﬁgtgillsll;;g;:llg;?)g D 39,000 square feet
Black stink block mastic Category 11 Basement cooler 1,404 square feet
Stink bleck silver coating Category I1 Bascment cooler 1,404 square feet
Assumed m?nb;gg??halt roofing Non-friable Roof 11,820 square feet
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category 11 Throughout 11 panels
Assumed electrical transite panel Category 11 Roof top penthouse 1 panel
Assumed fire doors Category | Throughow 9 fire doors

Page |A 14




Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead

(Pb) paint analysis:

Paint Sampling Summary

Paint Sampling Summary ' :
Material ‘Surface/Location Lead (Pb) by weight
Pink paint Cement block walls/stairwell 0.14
Green/yellow paint Cement column <0.02
Tan paint Cement block stairs 0.24
Tan/cream paint Brick 0.11
Red/rust paint Terrazzo stairs 0.19

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coaling material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal. Based on the analytical
resulis, all paints on walls and ceilings should be assumed to be lead (Pb) bearing in this building interior,

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the cooler stink block mastic, cooler stick block silver coating, assumed
electrical transite panels and brakes, assumed Category 1 electrical panels, and assumed fire doors
be removed prior to demolition. These materials must be removed by persons trained and certified
by the Wisconsin Department of Health Services to respond to asbestos containing materials.

It is not mandatory that the black floor tile mastic and non-friable rubber/asphalt roofing material
be removed prior to demolition, as these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of
this survey (Category I non-friable ACM). However, the material quantitics must be listed on the
demolition notice filed with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they
are left on the building.

Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category I, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

Page |A 15



5. Recycling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious
materials, Category I asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category I asbestos

containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recycled.

Page |A 16



HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SUMMARY

The following quantities are inclusive of Building A (wings 1, 2, 3), Building B, Building C and

Building D,

Potential Hazardous Materials

Material Description Approximate Quantity
Fire doors 296 doors
Fluorescent bulbs 1,352 bulbs
Ballasts 675 ballasts
Doors closers 216 door closers
Exit lights 46 lights
Roof'top air conditioner units 4 units
Exterior mercury vapor lights 34 lights
Exterior gray Trane air conditioners 6 units

The listed potential hazardous materials should be disposed of in compliance with local, state and

federal guidelines prior to demolition,

Page |A 17



Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Building A-Wing 1

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 30, 2013
John Hey Inspector LD, #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1.D. #AI1-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Room #/Location Sample LD, # Material Description Results
2" floor AWI-01A Off-white spray-on fireproofing Negative
2" floor AWI1-01B Off-white spray-on fireproofing Negative
3 floor AWI1-01C Off-white spray-on fireproofing Negative
3% floor AW1-01D Off-white spray-on fireprocfing Negative
1# floor AWI-01E Ofl-white spray-on fireprocfing Negative
Corridor entrance to rooms AWI-02A Bronze colored floor leveler Negative
Corridor entrance to rooms AWI1-0213 Bronze colored floor feveler Negative
Corridor entrance 10 rooms AWI1-02C Bronze colored floor leveler Negative
2" floor AWI1-03A Drywall Negative
2" floor AW1-03B Drywall Negative
3" floor AWI1-03C Drywall Negative
3" floor AW1-03D Drywall Negative
1* floor AWI1-03E Drywail Negative
2" floor AWI1-04A Plaster on sheet rock Negative
2" floor AW1-04A 1 Plaster on sheet rock — drywall fayer Negative
2" floor AW1-04B Piaster on sheet rock Negative
2™ floor AWI1-04B ] Plaster on sheet rock — drywall layer Negative
3" floor AW1-04C Plaster on sheet rock Negative
3" floor AWI-04C Plaster on sheet rock — drywall layer Negative
3" floor AWI1-04D Plaster on sheet rock Negative
3" floor AWI-04D ] Plaster on sheet rock — drywall layer Negative
1¥ floor AWI1-04E Plaster on sheet rock Negative
1* floor AWI1-04E | Plaster on sheet rock — drywall layer Negative
2™ floor bathroom AWI1-035A 1 x 1" ceramic floor gray grout Negative
1* floor bathroom AWI1-05B 1” x 17 ceramic floor gray grout Negative
3" floor bathroom AWI1-05C I” x 17 ceramic floor gray grout Negative
Corridors AW1-06A 4" x 4” green ceramic cove base grout Negative
Corridors AWI1-068B 4” % 4” green ceramic cove base grout Negative
Corridors AWI1-06C 47 x 4™ green ceramic cove base grout Negative
2" floor AWI1-07A Hard plaster on columns — skim coat Negative
2" floor AWI-07A 1 Hard plaster on columns — base coat Negative
2™ fioor AWI1-07B Hard plaster on columns — skim coat Negative
2" fioor AWI1-07B 1 Hard plaster on columns — base coat Negative
3% floor AWIL-07C Hard plaster on columns - skim coat Negative
3" floor AWI1-07C 1 Hard plaster on columns — base coat Negative
2" floor AWI-08A 4” % 47 preen ceramic cove base gold adhesive Negative
3" floor AW1-08B 4" x 4” green ceramic cove base gold adhesive Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Building A-Wing 1

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on Januvary 30, 2013
John Hey Inspector LD, #AI-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Enspector #AI1-170778

Room #/Lecation Sample L.D. # Material Description Results

1" floor AW1-08C 4" x 4" green ceramic cove base gold adhesive Negative

2" floor AWI1-09A Joint compound Negative

2 floor AW1-093 Joint compound Negative

3" floor AW1-09C Joint compound Negative

3" floor AW1-09D Joint compound Negative

¥ floor AWI1-09E Joint compound Negative

2™ floor AW1-10A Brenze cove base adhesive Negative

3 floar AWI1-10B Bronze cove base adhesive Negative

1* floor AWI1-10C Bronze cove base adhesive Negative

Tub room AWI-11A 4” x 4” tan ceramic watl tile grout Negative

2" floor AWI-11B 47 x 4 tan ceramic wall tile grout Negative

3 floor AW1-11C 4" x 4” tan ceramic wall tile grout Negative

1™ floor bathrooms AWI-12A 47 x 4 ceramic wall tile gold adhesive Negative
2™ fioor bathrooms AW1-128 4” x 47 ceramic wall tile gold adhesive Negative
3" floor bathrooms AWI1-12C 47 x 4% ceramic wall tile gold adhesive Negative
1* floor bathrooms AWI1-13A Yellow ceramic floor tile gray grout Negative
2™ fioor bathrooms AWI1-13B Yellow ceramic floor tile gray grout Negative
3" floor bathrooms AW1-13C Yellow ceramic floor tile gray grout Negative
1* floor demising walls AWI1-14A Bronze cove base adhesive Negative
2" floor demising walls AW1-14B Bronze cove base adhesive Negative
3 floor demising walls AW1-14C Bronze cove base adhesive Negative
2" floor bathrooms AWI-15A 4" x 4” green ceramic wall tile white grout Nepative
3" floor bathrooms AWI1-1513 4” x 4” areen ceramic wall tile white grout Negative
1* fioor bathreoms AW1-15C 4” x 4™ green ceramic wall tile white grout Negative
Throughout heat pumps AWL-16A Black vibration damper Negative
Throughout heat pumps AWI1-16B Black vibration damper Negative
Throughout heat pumps AW1-16C Black vibration damper Negative
Throughout heat pumps AWI1-17A Seam caulk on metal duct {green} Negative
Throughout heat pumps AWI1-178 Seam caulk on metal duct {green) Negative
Throughout heat pumps AWI1-17C Seam caulk on metal duct (green} - Negative
“Throughout heat pumps AWI1-18A Tan seam caulk Negative
Throughout heal pumps AWI1-188 Tan seam caulk Negative
Throughout heat pumps AWI1-18C Tan seam caulk Negative
Throughout AWI-19A Rust colored fire caulk Negative
Throughout AW1-19B Rust colored fire caulk Negative
Throughout AWI1-19C Rust colored fire cautk Negative
2™ floor day room AW1-20A Interior black window caulk Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on Januvary 30, 2013
John Hey Inspector 1.D. #AII-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector LD. #AI1-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Building A-Wing 1

Room #/Location Sample LD, # Material Description Results
2" floor day room AWI1-20B Interior black window caulk Negative
2™ floor day room AW1-20C Interior black window caulk Negative
Inside metal doors throughout AWI1-21A Brown insulation paper Negative
Inside metal doors throughout AWI-21AM Brown insulation paper gold adhesive Negative
Inside metal doors throughout AW1-218B Brown insulation paper Negative
Inside metal doors throughout AWI1-21IB M Brown insulation paper gold adhesive Negative
Inside metal doors throughout AWL-21C Brown insulation paper Negative
Inside metal deors throughout AWI-21CM Brown insulation paper gold adhesive Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 31, 2013
_John Hey Inspector LD, #A11-2512; David A, Muhar Inspector LD. #AI1-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A1i-170778

Building A-Wing 2

Room #/Location Sample L.D. # Material Description Results

3" floor AW2-01A Rust colored fire cauik Negative

3" floor AWZ-0iB Rust colored fire caulk Negative

2" floor AW2-01C Rust colored fire caulk Negative

3 floor bathroom AW2-02A 4” x 4” green ceramic wall tile gold adhesive Negative

3" fioor AW2-02B 4" x 4” green ceramic wall tile gold adhesive Nepative

2™ floor AW2-02C 4” x 4” green ceramic wall tile gold adhesive Negative

Tub room AW2-03A 4 x 4” tan ceramic wal} tile gold adhesive Negative

2" floor AW2-03B 47 x 4” tan ceramic wall tile gold adhesive Negative

2" floor AW2-03C 47 % 47 tan ceramic wall tile gold adhesive Negative

Center stairwell scuth side AW2-04A 4" x 4” quarry tile gray grout Negative
Center stairwell south side AW2-04B 4 x 4” quarry tile gray grout Negative
Center stairwell south side AW2-04C 47 x 4”7 quarry tile gray grout Negative
Corridors AWZ2-05A Ceramic tile cove base gold adhesive Negative

2™ ficor AW2-05B Ceramic tile cove base gold adhesive Negative

3" fioor AW2-05C Ceramic tile cove base gold adhesive Negative

2 floor AW2-06A Bronze cove base adhesive Nepative

2" floor AW2-06B Bronze cove base adhesive Negative

3" floor AW2-06C Bronze cove base adhesive Negative
Demising walls 2™ floor/3" floor AW2-07A Black cove base adhesive Negative
Demising walis 2™ floor/3™ floor AW2-07B Black cove basc adhesive Negative
Demising walls 2™ floor/3™ floor AW2-07C Black cove base adhesive Negative
Corridors & door entrances AWZ2-08A Bronze floor leveler Negative
Corridors & door entrances AW2-0883 Bronze floor leveler Negative
Corridors & door entrances AW?2-08C Bronze floor leveler Negative
Throughout AW2-09A White joint compound Negative
Throughout AW2-09B Whitéjoint compound Negative
Throughout AW2-09C White joint compound Negative
Columns AW2-10A Hard plaster on columns — skim coat Negative
Columns AWZ-10A ] Hard plaster on columns — base coat Negative

2" floor AW2-108B Hard plaster on columns — skim coat Negative

2" floor AW2-10B 1 Hard plaster on columns — base coat Neégative

3" floor AW2-10C Hard plaster on columns — skim coat Negative

3" floor AW2-10C 1 Hard plaster on columns — base coat Negative

3" fioor AW2-11A Hard plaster on sheet rock — skim coat Negative

3" floor AW2-11A1 Hard plaster on sheet rock — base coat Negative

39 floor AW2-11B Hard plaster on sheet rock — skim coal Negative

3" floor AW2-11B1 Hard plaster on sheet rock — base coat Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 31, 2013 .
John Hey Inspector 1.D. #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AI1-170778

Building A-Wing 2

Room #/1.ocation Sample LD, # Material Description Resnlts

2" floor AW2-11C Hard plaster on sheet rock — skim coat Negative

2™ floor AWZ-11C T Hard plaster on sheet rock — base coat Negative

2 floor AW2-11D Hard plaster on sheet rock Negative

1* floor AWZ-11E Hard plaster on sheet rock — skim coat Negative

1* floor AWZ-11E1 Hard plaster on sheet rock — base coat Negative

3" floor east fan room AW2-12A Black vibration damper Negative
3™ floor east fan room AW2-12B Black vibration damper Negative
3" floor east fan room AW2-12C Black vibration darnper Negative
3™ floor east fan room AW2-13A Circular duct vibration damper Negative
3" floor east fan room AW2-13B Circular duct vibration damper Negative
3" floor east fan room AW2-13C Circular duct vibration damper Negative
South stairs AW2-14A Quarry tile adhesive Negative
South stairs AW2-14B Quarry tile adhesive Negative
South stairs AW2-14C Quarry tile adhesive Negative
Throughout beams/walls AW2-15A Light gray spray-on fireproofing Negative
Throughout beams/walls AW2-1583 Light gray spray-on fireproofing Negative
Throughout beams/walls AW2-15C Light gray spray-on fireproofing Negative
Throughout beams/walls AW2-15D Light gray spray-on fireproofing Negative
Throughout beams/walls AW2-15E Light gray spray-on fireproofing Negative
Throughout AW2-16A Drywall on cement block Negative
Throughout AWZ-1613 Drywall on cement block Negative
Throughout AW2-16C Drywall on cement block Negative
Throughout AW2-16D Drywall on cement block Negative
Throughout AW2-16E Drywall on cement block Negative
Throughout AW2-17A Tan steel door sound barrier Negative
Throughout AW2-178 - Tan steel door sound barrier Negative
Throughout AW2-17C Tan steel door sound barrier Negative
Debris pile AW2-18A 2’ x 4’ rough white ceiling tile Negative
Debris pile AW2-188 27 x 4” rough white ceiling tile Negative
Debris pile AW2Z-18C 2" x 4’ rough white ceiling tile Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 3, 2013
John ey Inspector 1.D. #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector [.D. #AI1-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Building A-Wing 3

Room #/Location Sample LD. # Material Description Results
2" floor kitchen AW3-01A Glass biock mortar Negative

2" floor kitchen AW3I-0IB Glass block mortar Negative

2" floor kitchen AW3-01C Glass block mortar Negative

2™ floor kitchen AW3-02A Interior cement block mortar Negative

2" floor kitchen AW3-02B Interior cement block mortar Negative

2™ floor kitchen AW3-02C Interior cement block mortar Negative

2" floor kitchen AW3-03A 4" x 47 quarry tile grout Negative

2™ floor kitchen AW3-03B. 47 x 4" quarry tile grout Negative

2" fioor kitchen AW3-03C 4" x 4" quarry tile grout Negative

2 floor kitchen AW3-04A Green glazed block mortar Negative

2™ floor kitchen AW3-04B Green glazed block mortar Nepative

2™ floor kitchen AW3-04C Green glazed block mortar Negative

2™ floor dining AW3-05A Hard plaster — skim coat Negative

2" floor dining AW3-05A 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative

2™ floor dining AW3-05B Hard plaster — skim coat Negative

2™ fioor dining AW3-05B 1 Hard plaster — base ccat Negative

2™ fioor dining AW3-05C Hard plaster — skim coat Negative

2™ fioor dining AW3-05C1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative

1* floor day room AW3-05D Hard plaster — skim coat Negative

1* floor day room AW3-05D 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative

1 fioor day room AW3-05D Hard plaster —~ skim coat Negative

1* floor day room AW3-05D | Hard plaster — base coat Negative

2" floor kitchen AW3-06A 18" x 187 ceramic tile groul Negative

2" floor kitchen AW3-06B 187 x 18" ceramic tile grout Negative

2" floor kitchen AW3-06C 18” x 18" ceramic tile grout Negative
Kitchen stairs AW3-07A Terrazzo flooring Negative
Kitchen stairs AW3-07B Terrazzo flooring Negative
Kitchen stairs AW3-07C Terrazzo flooring Negative

1% floor storage room 16 AW3-08A FExpansion joint mortar Negative
1¥ floor storage room 16 AW3-08B Expansion joint mortar Negative
1* floor storage room 16 AW3-08C Expansion joint mortar Negative
1* floor storage room 16 AW3-09A Gray block patch Negative
1* floor storage room 16 AW3-09B Gray block paich Negative
1* floor storage room 16 AW3-09C Gray block patch Negative
2™ fioor dining room AW3-10A 127 x 12 rough ceiling tile Negative
2™ ftoor dining room AW3-10B 127 x 12" rough ceiling tile Negative
2™ floor dining room AW3-10C 127 x 127 rough ceiling tile Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1 Building A-Wing 3
Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 3, 2013
John Hey Inspector 1.1, #A11-2512; David A, Muhar Inspector 1.D. #AT1-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AII-170778

Room #/Location Sample L.D. # Material Deseription Results
1* floor day room AW3-11A Prark brown rubber hosing adhesive Negative
1¥ floor day room AW3-11B Dark brown rubber hosing adhesive Negative
1* floor day room AWI-11C Dark brown rubber hosing adhesive Negative
1¥ floor corridor AW3-12A Tan ceiling lile glue pads Nepative
1* floor corridor AW3-128 Tan ceiling tile glue pads Negative .
1* floar corridor AW3-12C Tan ceiling tile glue pads Negative
1* floor day room AW3-13A Brown cove base adhesive Negative
Corridor AW3-13B Brown cove base adhesive Negative
DDining room AW3-13C Brown cove base adhesive Negative
Throughout AW3-14A Light tan {loor leveler Negative
Throughout AW3-14B Light tan fioor leveler ' Negative
Throughout AW3-14C Light tan floor leveler ‘ Negative
Boiler room AW3-15A White boiler deor gasket Negative
Boiler room AW3-15B White boiler door gasket Negative
Boiler room AW3-15C White boiler door gasket Negative
Boiler room AW3-16A Chimney fire brick Negative
Boiler room AW3-16B Chimney fire brick Negative
Boiler recom AW3-16C Chimney fire brick Negative
Boiler room AW3-17A Chimney door gray sealant POSITIVE
Boiler room AW3-17B Chimney door gray sealant Not analyzed

Botler room AW3-17C Chimney door gray sealant Not analyzed




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

David A. Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A11-136; John Ramstack Inspector #AI11-170778

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 5, 2013

Exterior Building A

Room #/Location Sample LD, # Material Description Results
Exterior south A-01A Gray expansion caulk Negative
Exterior south A-01B Gray expansion caulk Negative
Exterior south A-01C Gray expansion caulk Negative

Exterior A-02A Gray exterior window caulk Negative

Exterior A-028 Gray exterior window caulk Negative

Exterior A-02C Gray exterior window caulk Negative

IExterior overhang south side A-03A White hard plaster — skim coat Negalive
LExterior overhang south side A-03A1 White hard plaster ~ base coat Negative
Exterior overhang south side A-03B White hard plaster - skim coat Negative
Exterior overhang south side A-03B1T White hard plaster — base coat Negative
Exterior overhang south side A-03C White hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Exterior overhang south side A-03C 1 White hard plaster — base coat Negative
Exterior north A-04A Brick mortar Negative
Exterior south A-04B Brick mortar Negative
Exterior east A-04C Brick mortar Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1 Building B

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampied on February 3 & 5, 2013

John Hey Inspector 1D, #AI11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector LD, #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Room #/Location Sample LD. # Material Description Results
1 floor B-01A Book tile mortar Negative
2 floor B-01B Book Lile mortar Negative
3" floor B-01C Book tile mortar Negative
3 floor B-02A Hard plaster Negative
3" floor B-02B Hard plaster Negative
2™ floor B-02C Hard plaster Negative
2™ floor B-02D Hard plaster Negative
1* floor B-02E Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
1™ floor B-02E | Hard plaster — base coat Negative
1* floor B-02F Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
1* floor B-02F 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
1 floor B-02G Hard plaster Negalive
3" fleor B-03A Pyro bar block Negative
3 floor B-03B ' Pyro bar black Negative
2™ floor B-03C Pyro bar block Negative
2™ floor B-03D Pyre bar block Negative
1% floor B-03E Pyro bar block Negative
2™ floor B-04A Pyro bar joint compound Negalive
3" floor B-04B Pyro bar joint compound Negative
1* floor B-04C Pyro bar joint compound Negative

Pipe chase enclosures B-05A Drywall/joint compound {composite) Negative
2™ flgor B-058 Drywall/joint compound {composite) Negative
3" floor B-05C Drywali/joint compound (composite) Negative
3" floor B-06A Terrazzo flooring Negative
3" floor B-068 Terrazzo flooring Negative
2™ floor B-06C Terrazzo flooring Negative

- 2™ floor B-06D “Terrazzo flooring Negalive
1* floor B-06E Terrazzo flooring Negative
2™ floor B-07A Troweled on fire stop Negative
2" floor B-07B Troweled on {ire stop Negative
2" floor B-07C Troweled on fire stop Negative
Corridor B-08A 127 x 12" while smooth pinhole ceiling tile Negative
2" floor B-08B 12" x 12" white smooth pinhole ceiling tile Negative
2" loor B-08C 127 x 12" white smooth pinhole ceiling tile Negative
1* floor B-08C 127 x 12” white smooth pinhole ceiling tile Negative
1* floor B-08C 127 x 12" white smooth pinhole ceiling tile Negative
3% floor B-09A ) Black ceramic tile mortar base - skim coat Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1 Building B

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 3 & 5, 2013

John Hey Inspector 1D, #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A11-156; John Ramstackfnspector #AI-170778

Room #/Lecation Sample LD. # Material Description Resulis
3" fioor B-09A 1 Black ceramic tile mortar base - base coat Negative
2™ floor B-09B Black ceramic tile mortar base - skim coat Negative
2" floor B-09B 1 Black ceramic tile moriar base - base coat Negative
1* floor B-09C Black ceramic tile mortar base - skim coat Negative
1" floor B-09C | Black ceramic tile mortar base - base coat Negative
3% floor B-10A Black ceramic cove tile grout Negative
2™ floor B-10B Black ceramic cove tile grout Negative
1" floor B-10C Black ceramic cove tile grout Negative

Throughout B-11A Interior gray window caulk Negative
Throughout B-11B Interior gray window caulk Negative
Throughout B-11C Interior gray window caulk Negative
Throughout B-12A Gray heat pump duct sealant Negative
Throughout B-12B Gray heat pump duct sealant Negative
Throughout B-12C Gray heat pump duct sealant Negative
Throughout B-13A Light tan heat pump caulk on z-strips Negative
Throughout B-13B Light tan heat pump caulk on z-strips Negative
Throughout B-13C Light tan heat pump caulk on z-strips Negative

Built-out columns B-14A Gold cove base adhesive on drywall Negative

Built-out columns B-14B ‘ Gold cove base adhesive on drywall Negative

Buiit-out columns B-14C Gold cove base adhesive on drywall Negative

3" floor corridors B-15A 12” x 127 ceiling tile brown glue pads Negative

2™ floor corridors B-153 127 % 12” ceiling tile brown glue pads Negative

1* floor corridors B-15C 127 x 127 ceiling tile brown glue pads Negative

Walil pipe penetrations B-16A Dark gray wall fire patch Negative
Wall pipe penetrations 3-16B Dark gray wall fire patch Negative
Wall pipe penetrations B-16C Dark gray wall fire patch Negative
Throughout B-17A Heat pump black vibration damper Negative
‘Throughout B-17B Heat pump black vibration damper Negative
Througheout B-17C Heat pump black vibration damper Negative

3" floor bathrooms B-18A 47 x 4 salmon ceramic wali tile mortar base Negative
3" floor bathrooms B-18B 4” x 47 salmon ceramic wall tile mortar base Negative
2" floor bathrooms B-18C - 4”7 x 4” salmon ceramic wall tile mortar base Negative
2" floor bathreoms B-18D 4” x 4” salmon ceramic wall tile mortar base Negative
1™ fioor bathrooms B-18E 4” x 4” salmon ceramic wall tile mortar base Negative
3 floor bathrooms B-19A 4” x 4” salmen ceramic wall tile grout Negative
2" floor bathrooms B-19B 4” x 4” salmon ceramic wall tile grout Negative
1* floor bathrooms B-19C 47 x 4 salmon ceramic wall tile grout Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1 Building B
Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 3 & 5, 2013
John Hey Inspector 1.D. #AI1-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AII-170778

Room #/Location Sample LD. # Material Description Results
3" floor bathrooms B-20A Tan multi-size ceramic {loor tile grout Negative
2™ floor bathrooms B-208 Tan multi-size ceramic floor tile grout Negative
I* floor bathrooms B-20C Tan multi-size ceramic floor tile grout Negative
2" floor northwest B-21A Cooler wall plaster Negative
2™ floor northwest B-21AM Cooler wall plaster black mastic Negative
2" floor northwest B-21B Cooler wall plaster Negative
2™ floor northwest B-21B M Cooler wall plaster black mastic Negative
2" floor northwest B-21C Cooler wall plaster Negative
2" floor northwest B-21CM Cooler wall plaster black mastic Negative
2" floor cooter door B-22A Black vapor paper Negative
2™ fioor cooler door B-22B Black vapor paper Negative
2" floor cooler door B-22C Black vapor paper Negative
2" fioor cooler door B-23A Black granular insulation Negative
2™ fioor cooler door 3-23B Black granular insulation Negative
2" floor cooler door B-23C Black granular insulation Negative
2" floor coaler floor B-24A M Black floor mastic Negative
2" floor cooler floor B-24A Cork on floor Negative
2" floor cooler floor B-24B M Black floor mastic Negative
2" floor cooler floor B3-24B Cork on {loor Negative
2" floor cooler foor B-24C M Black floor mastic Negative
2" floor cooler floor B-24C Cork on floor Negative
2" floor northwest area B-25A Black floor mastic Negative
2" floor northwest area B-25B Black floor mastic Negative
2" floor northwest arca B-25C Black floor mastic Negative
2" floor northwest area B-26A Gold carpet mastic over tile Negative
2™ floor northwest area B-26B Gold carpet mastic over tile Negative
2™ floor northwest area B-26C Gold carpet mastic over tile Negative

Exterior sampling

Exterior B-05A Gray exterior window caulk Negative
Exterior B-05B Gray exterior window caulk Negative
Exterior B-05C Gray exterior window caulk Negative
Exterior B-06A Brick mortar Negative
Exterior B-06B Brick mortar Negative
Lxterior B-06C Brick mortar Negative
Exterior tic-in to building A B-07A Gray expansion joint caulk Negative
Exterior tie-in to building A B-07B Gray expansion joint caulk Negative
Exterior tie-in to building A B-07C (ray expansion joini caulk Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Building C

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 4-5, 2013
John Hey Inspector LD, #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1D, #AII-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AI1-170778

Room #/Location Sample LD, # Material Description Results
Front entrance C-01A Vibration damper Negative
East C-01B Vibration damper Negative
1™ floor C-01C Vibration damper Negative
1* floor bathrooms C-02A 4" x 4" white ceramic wali tile grout Negalive
1* floor bathrooms C-02B 4 x 4” white ceramic wall tile grout Negative
1* floor bathrooms C-02C 47 x 4" white ceramic wall tile grout Negative
1* floor bathrooms C-03A 4% x 4* white ceramic wall adhesive Negative
i floar bathrooms C-03B 4 % 4” white ceramic wall adhesive Negative
1* floor bathrooms C-03C 47 x 4™ white ceramic wall adhesive Negative
1* floor bathrooms C-04A 17 % 1" multi-colored ceramic floor tile grout Negative
1* floor bathrooms C-04B 1* x 1" multi-~colored ceramic floor tife grout Negative
1* floor bathrooms C-04C 17 x I multi-colored ceramic floor tile grout Negative
Center stairs C-03A Stair tread adhesive Negative
Center stairs C-058 Stair tread adhesive Negative
Center stairs C05C Stair tread adhesive Negative
1* floor throughout C-06A Gray interior window caulk Negative
1* floor throughout C-06B Gray interior window caulk Negative
1* floor throughout C-06C Gray interior window caulk Negative
1* floor C-07A interjor gray window glazing Negative
1* floor C-07B Interior gray window glazing Negative
1* floor C-07C interior gray window glazing Negative
1* floor throughout C-08A Cove base brown adhesive Negative
1* floor throughout C-08B Cove base brown adhesive Negative
1% floor throughout C-08C Cove base brown adhesive Negative
Throughout C-09A Interior cement biock mortar Negative
Throughout C-09B Interior cement block mortar Negative
Throughout C-05C Interior cement block mortar Negative
1* floor enirance & stairwells C-10A 2’ x 2 white pinhole ceiling tile Negative
1¥ floor entrance & stairwells C-10B 27 x 2’ white pinhole ceiling tile Negative
1* floor entrance & stairwells C-10C 2" x 2° white pinhole ceiling tile Negative
‘Througheut C-11A Drywall/fjoint compound Trace!
Throughout C-118 Drywall/joint compound Trace'
Throughout C-11C Drywall/ioint compound Trace!
Throughout C-11D Drywallfjoint compound Trace?
Throughout C-11E Drywall/ioint compound Trace!
Throughout C-12A Hard plaster — skim coat Negalive
Throughout C-12A1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 4-5, 2013

Building C

John Hey Inspector 1D, #AI1-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector I.D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AI-170778

Room #/Location Sample I.D. # Material Deseription Results
Throughout C-12B Hard plaster -- skim coat Negative
Throughout C-12B 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
Throughout C-12C Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Throughout C-12C1 : Hard plaster — base coat Negative
Throughout C-12D Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Throughout C-12D} Hard plaster — base coat Negative
Throughout C-12E Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Throughout C-12E1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative

Basement floor C-13A . Tan terrazzo flooring Negative
Basement Hoor C-13B8 Tan terrazzo flooring Negative
Basement floor C-13C : Tan terrazzo flooring Negative
Basement floor C-14A Lipht gray terrazzo flooring Negative
Basement floor C-14B Light gray terrazzo flooring | Negative
Basement floor C-14C Light gray terrazzo flooring Nepative

Basement kitchen C-15A Light purple sink sound barrier POSITIVE

Basement kitchen C-158 Light purple sink sound barrier Not analyzed

Basement kitchen C-15C Light purple sink sound barrier Not analyzed
Throughout C-16A Troweled on fire barrier Negative
Throughout C-168 Troweied on fire barrier Negative
Throughout C-16C Troweled on fire barrier Negative

Ixterior sampling
Exterior C-08A Multi-colored stone face panels Negative
Exterior C-08B Multi-colored stone face panels Negative
Exterior C-08C Multi-colored stone face panels Negative
Exterior C-09A Gray window caulk Negative
Exterior C-098 Gray window caulk Negative
Exterior C-09C Gray window caulk Negative
Exterior C-10A Brick mortar Negative
Exterior C-108 Brick mortar Negative
Exterior C-10C Brick mortar Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 4-5, 2013

Building D

John Hey Inspector 1.D. #A11-2512; David A, Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A]11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Room #/Location Sample LD. # Material Description Results
3" floor mechanical room D-01A Gray window glazing Negative
3" floor mechanical room D-01B Gray window glazing Negative
3" floor mechanical room D-01C Gray window glazing Negative
3" floor mechanical room D-GZA Brown reinforced concrete paper Negative
3" floor mechanical room D-02B Brown reinforced concrete paper Negative
3" floor mechanical room D-02C Brown reinforeed concrele paper Negative
Stairwells D-03A Quarry tile grout Negative
Stairwells D-03B Quarry tile grout Negative
Stairwells D-03C Quarry tile grout Negative
Throughout D-04A Book tile mortar Negative
Throughout >-04B Book tite mortar Negative
Throughout D-04C Book tite mortar Negative
Throughout D-05SA Black floor tile mastic POSITIVE
Throughout -05B8 Black floor tile mastic Not analyzed
Throughout D-05C Black floor tile mastic Not analyzed
Throughout -05D Black fioor tile mastic Not analyzed
Throughout D-05E Black floor tile mastic Not analyzed
Stairwells D-06A Brown glue pucks Negative
Stairwells D-06B Brown glue pucks Negative
Stairwells D-06C Brown glue pucks Negative
Throughout D-07A Cement block mortar Negative
Throughout [3-078 Cement block mortar Negative
Throughout D-07C Cement block mortar Negalive
Throughout D-08A Pyro bar Negative
Throughout D-088B Pyro bar Negative
Throughout D-08C Pyro bar Negative
Throughout D-09A Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Throughout D-09A 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
Throughout D-G9B Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Throughout D098 ] Hard piaster ~ base coat Negative
Throughout D-09C Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Throughout - D-09C 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
Stairwells D-10A 12” x 12" wormhole ceiling tile Negative
Stairwells D-10B 127 x 12" wormbhole ceiling tile Negative
Stairwells -10C 12” x 12” wormhole ceiling tile Negative
Walls throughout D-11A Black waterproofing Negative
Walls throughout D-11B Black waterproofing Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1 Building D
Delahey Industries Project #13006

Sampled on February 4-5, 2013
John Hey Inspector 1.D. #AI1-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector I.D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AI11-170778

Room #/Locatien Sample LD, # Material Description Results
Walts throughout D-11C Biack waterproofing Negative
Walls throughout D-11D Black waterproofing Negative
Walls throughout D-11E Black waterproofing Negative
Throughout D-12A Dark tan cove base mastic Negative
Throughout D-128 [Dark tan cove base mastic Negative
Throughout D-12C Dark tan cove base mastic Negative
Removed bathrooms D-13A Tan multi-colored floor tile mortar base Negalive
Removed bathrooms D-13B Tan multi-colored floor tile mortar base Negative
Removed bathrooms D-13C Tan mulii-colored floor tile mortar base Negative
Stairwell raiiings D-14A Yellow ceramic railing tile mortar base Negative
Stairwell railings D-14B Yellow ceramic railing tite mortar base Negative
Stairwell railings D-14C Yetlow ceramic raiting lile mortar base Negative
Basement cooler D-15A Hard plaster over insulation Negative
Basement cooler D-15B8 Hard plaster over insulation Negative
Basement cooler [3-15C Hard plaster over insulation Negative
Basement cooler walls D-16A Brown insulation Negative
Basement cooler walls D-16B Brown insulation Negative
Basement cooler walis D-16C Brown insulation Negative
Basement cooler D-17A Black stink block Negative
Basement cooler D-17A M Black stink block black mastic Negative
Basement cooler D-17B ' Black stink block Negative
Basement cooler D-17B M Black stink block black mastic POSITIVE
Basement cooler D-17C Black stink block Negative
Basement cooler D-17C M Black stink biock black mastic Not analyzed
Basement cooler D-18A Black stink block Negative
Basement cooler D-18A M Black stink block silver coating POSITIVE
Basement cooler D-18B Black stink block Negative
Basement cooler D-18B M Black stink biock silver coating Not analyzed
Basement cooler D-18C Black stink block Negative
Basement cooler D-18CM Black stink block silver coating Noi analyzed
Basement bathroom D-19A . 2° % 27 white ceiling tile Negative
Basement bathroom D-19B 2” x 27 white ceiling tile Negative
Basement bathroom D-18C 2’ x 27 white ceiling tile Negative
Basement D-20A Metal pan ceiling tile black vapor paper Negative
Basement D-20B Metal pan ceiling tile black vapor paper Negative
Basement D-20C Metal pan ceiling tile black vapor paper Negative
Basement debris pile D-21A Black insulation backing Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, Wi

Building D

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 4-5, 2013
John Hey Inspector 1.1, #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector LD, #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Room #/Location Sample LD, # Material Description Results
Basement debris pile DP-21B Black insulation backing Negative
Basement debris pile D-21C Btlack insulation backing Negative
Basement bathroom D-224 4" x 47 yellow ceramic wall tile white grout Negative
Basement bathroom D-22B8 4” x 47 yellow ceramic wall tile white grout Negative
Basement bathroom D-22C 4” x 4” yellow ceramic wall tile white grout Negative
Basement bathroom D-23A White caulk on yeilow ceramic wall tile Negative
Basement bathroom D-23B White caulk on yellow ceramic wail tile Negative
Basement bathroom D-23C White caulk on yellow ceramic wall tile Negative
Basement fan room D-24A Silver back duct insulation Negative
Basement fan room D-241 Silver back duct insulation Negative
Basement fan room D-24C Silver back duct insulation Negative

Exterior sampling
Exterior D-11A Brick mortar Negative
Exterior D-1183 Brick moriar Negative
Exterior D-11C Rrick mortar Negative
Exterior D-12A Gray window caulk Negative
Exterior 13-1213 Gray window caulk Negative
Exterior D-12¢C Gray window caulk Negative

Exterior east side D-13A Tan troweled-on plaster — finish coat Negative

Exterior ¢ast side D-13A1 Tan troweled-on plaster — base coal Negative

Exterior east side D-133 Tan troweled-on piaster — finish coat Negative

Exterior cast side D-13B 1 Tan troweled-on plaster — base coat Negative

Exterior east side D-13C Tan troweled-on plasier — finish coat Negative

Exterior cast side D-13C1 Tan troweled-on plaster — base coat Negative

Exterior cast side D-14A Tan expansion caulk Negative

Exterior cast side D-14B Tan expansion caulk Negative

Exterior east side D-14C Tan expansion canlk Negative




Building E and E| (addition) -
Building F -
Building G -
Building H -
Building P -

APPENDIX B

Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, WI
Building E

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)
(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building E

* exterior dark brick mortar + light gray seam caulk

» cement block mortar ~+ black floor felt

* 2’ x 2° white pinhole ceiling tile « ceramic floor tile grout

+ tan ceramic floor tile mastic + interior light gray fire brick

* hard plasters « sheet rock over cement block

* hard plaster on block

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Appreximate Quantity
Black stair tread mastic Non-friable Building E 90 square feet
Black floor mastic Non-friable Building E 160 square feet
(exposed on stairwells)
Assumed rubber/fa_sphalt roofing Non-friable Roof 1804 square feet
matetial
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category 11 Basement 4 panels

Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead
(Pb) paint analysis:

SRR Paint Sampling Summary e e
Material ' _Surface/Location - Lead (Pb) by weight
White paint Interior block 0.06

Page | Bi




__Paint Sampling Summary

Material - o e i Serfaee/Loeations i e Lead (Pb) by weight -

Green paint Interior block <002

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal. Based on the analytical
results, all paints on walls and ceilings should be assumed to be lead (Pb) bearing in this building interior.

Potential Hazardous Materials

Building and E1 (addition)
Material Description Location Approximate Quantity
Fluorescent bulbs Throughout 4 bulbs
Ballasts Throughout 2 ballasts
Door closers Throughout 2 units
Exterior mercury vapor lights Throughout 2 lights
Exit lights Throughout 8 lights

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan, Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM Is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the assumed Category 1l electrical panels be removed prior to demolition.
These materials must be removed by persons trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of
Health Services to respond to asbestos containing materials.

It is not mandatory that the black stair tread mastic, exposed black mastic on stairwells and non-
friable rubber/asphalt roofing material be removed prior to demolition, as these materials were in
good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey (Category I non-friable ACM). However, the
material quantities must be listed on the demolition notice filed with the Wisconsin Department of

" Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the building.

Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category 1, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted. '

Page | B2



5. Recycling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious
materials, Category 1 asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category I asbestos
contdining materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may notf be recycled.

6. The listed potential hazardous materials should also be disposed of in compliance with local, state
and federal guidelines prior to demolition.

Page | B3



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, W1
Building E1 (addition)

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)
(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building E1 Addition

* ceiling plaster + wall plasters & black waterproofing
» exterior gray seam caulk + black/white inline pipe insulation

» exterior window glazing * bronze floor leveler

» ceramic tile gold adhesive * cement block mortar

* gray & red conduit fireproofing s ceramic tile white grout

» exterior brick mortar

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
Commingled black mastic . Building E addition — 2™ e
floor pad Category 11 floor 170 square feet
Assumed rubber/asphalt . . 1
roofing material Non-friable Roof {inciuded in E)

Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead
(Pb) paint analysis:

S Paint Sampling Summary - S Lo
Material . Surface/Location ' " Lead {Pb) by weight
Cream paint Interior brick 0.63
Tan paint Interior block 14.26

Page | B4




Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal. Based on the analytical
results, all paints on walls and ceilings should be assumed to be lead (Pb) bearing in this building interior.

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1. This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

2. It is mandatory that the Category Il commingled black mastic pad and assumed Category Il
electrical panels be removed prior to demolition. The mastic and pad will break up and become a
regulated asbestos containing material (RACM) during demolition. These materials must be
removed by persons trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of Health Services to
respond to asbestos containing materials,

3. It is not mandatory that the non-friable rubber/asphalt roofing material be removed prior to
demolition, as these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey
(Category I non-friable ACM). However, the material quantities must be listed on the demolition
notice filed with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the
building.

4. Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category 1, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

5. Recyeling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious
materials, Category | asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category | asbestos
containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recycled.

Page | BS



Jefferson Nursing Home Site

1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, WI

Building F

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect

materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)

(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos {or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building ¥

+ window glazing
* black felt on floor
+ pipe packing

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

+ hard plasters
+ gray floor leveler

» boiler door white insulation

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
Assumed asphalt roofing material | Non-friable Roof 13,285 square feet
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category 1 Throughout 18 panels

Assumed fire doors Category | Throughout 6 fire doors

Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead

(Pb) paint analysis:

Paint Sampling Summary 3
Material Surface/Location Lead (Pb) by weight
Yellow paint Exterior brick <0.02
Light yellow paint Exterior cement block <0.02
Rust colored paint Exterior cement window frames 0.18
Light blue paint Interior brick <(.02

Page | B6



e . Paint Sampling Summary .~ -~ " ) L
st Material o “ o -Surface/Location - = Lead (Pb) by weight

Tan & blue paint Interior cement block 0.08
Dark blue paint Interior wood .64
Cream/blue paint Interior round cement block <(.02
White/cream paint Interior wood ceiling 3.06
Cream paint Interior block <0.02
Dark blue paint Interior brick 14.21

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal. Based on the analytical
results, all paints on walls and ceilings should be assumed to be lead (Pb) bearing in this building interior.

Potential Hazardous Materials

Potential Hazardous Materials
Material Description Location Approximate Quantity
Thermostats Throughout 6 thermostats
Transformer Interior kitchen 1 unit
Exit lights Throughout 12 lights

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1.

4.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the assumed Category Il electrical panels and assumed fire doors be removed
prior to demolition. These materials must be removed by persons trained and certified by the
Wisconsin Department of Health Services to respond to asbestos containing materials.

It is not mandatory that the non-friable asphalt roofing material be removed prior to demolition, as
these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey (Category I non-friable
ACM). However, the material quantities must be listed on the demolition notice filed with the
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the building.

Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category I, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal

Page | B7



business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

Recycling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious
materials, Category 1 asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category I asbestos
containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recycled.

The listed potential hazardous materials should also be disposed of in compliance with local, state
and federal guidelines prior to demolition.

Page | B8



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, WI
Building G

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative) '
(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building G

» ceiling black tar and plaster
+ window caulk
* hard plasters

» dark brown insulation board
* brown cork insulation and tar
» exterior cement block mortar

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
Black tar waterproofing on cement . Cement — 1600 square feet
and cement block Category II Interior walls Cement block ~ 1280 square feet
Assumed asphalt roofing material | Non-friable Roof 7800 square feet
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category I | Throughout & roof 6 panels
Assumed fire doors Category | Throughout 1 fire door

Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead
(Pb) paint analysis:

Paint Sampling Summary
Material Surface/Location Lead (Pb) by weight
Cream paint Exterior.cement block <0.02
White paint Exterior brick knee wall <0.02
White paint Exterior cement block knee wall <02

Page | B9



‘Material

-_Paint Sampling Summary

Lead (Pb) by weight ~

Surface/Location .
Cream/white paint Exterior cement block 0.07
Blue/green paint Interior block 0.04

Wisconsin Environmentat Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal. Based on the analytical
results, all paints on walls and ceilings should be assumed to be lead (Pb) bearing in this building exterior.

Potential Hazardous Materials

Potential Hazardous Materials

Material Description Location Approximate Quantity
Fluorescent bulbs Throughout 8 bulbs
Ballasts Throughout 4 ballasts
Air conditioner unit Roof top 1 unit

Inspection Nofes/Response Recommendations:

I

4.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the black tar waterproofing on cement and cement block, assumed Category 11
electrical panels and assumed fire doors be removed prior to demolition. These materials must be
removed by persons trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of Health Services to
respond {0 asbestos containing materials.

1t is not mandatory that the non-friable asphalt roofing material be removed prior to demolition, as
these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey (Category | non-friable
ACM). However, the material quantities must be listed on the demolition notice filed with the
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the building.

Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category 1, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

Page|B10



5. Recycling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious
materials, Category I asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category I asbestos
containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recycled. '

6. The listed potential hazardous materials should also be disposed of in compliance with local, state
and federal guidelines prior to demolition.

Page |B1]



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, WI
Building H

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)

(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building H
« exterior capstone black tar & mortar » exterior cement brick mortar
« exterior overhead door caulk * exterior tan capstone caulk
* troweled-on plaster + brown composite board/black membrane
* brown insulation board « exterior cement block mortar

« window glazing

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Deseription Category Location Approximate Quantity
Assumed asphalt roofing material | Non-friable Roof 5,200 square feet
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category I Basement 2 panels

Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead
(Pb) paint analysis:

P . Paint Sampling: Swmmary - = 000 s e T ey :
Material e Syrface/Leeation 0 ¢ ' Lead (Pb) by weight
Tan paint Exterior cement block 0.13

White paint Interior brick 1.38

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal. Based on the analytical
results, all paints on walls and ceilings should be assumed to be lead (Pb) bearing in this building interior,

Page|Bi2




Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of' this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the assumed Category Il electrical panels be removed prior to demolition.
These materials must be removed by persons trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of
Health Services to respond to asbestos containing materials.

it is not mandatory that the non-friable asphalt roofing material be removed prior to demolition, as
these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey (Category I non-friable
ACM). However, the material quantitics must be listed on the demolition notice filed with the
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the building.

Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category I, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition,
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to
an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours. If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

Recyeling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious
materials, Category I asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category I asbestos
containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recycled.

Page | B13



Jefferson Nursing Home Site

1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, Wi

Building P

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect

materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)

(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building P

* brown peg board

* cooler door cork insulation
» white compressed board

+ silver window caulk

+ plaster over cork

» gray wall tile mortar base
+ sheet rock :

+ gold wall tile adhesive

« 6” x 6” quarry tile gray grout’
* brown reinforced concrete paper

* cooler door black vapor paper
« cooler black joint tar on cork

* brick mortar
« cement block mortar
* bronze window caulk
+ hard plasters

« octagon tan ceramic floor tile grout
« 47 x 4" rust ceramic tile white grout
» 47 x 4” yellow ceramic wall tile white grout

+ gold carpet mastic

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
. Basement 2,000 linear feet
Tan Spancrete caulk Category I {between Spancrete panels) (1/2” wide)
Assumed asphalt roofing material | Non-friable Roof 1,836 square feet
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category 11 Throughout 26 panels
Assumed fire doors Category | Throughout 21

Page [Bl4




Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead

(Pb) paint analysis:

Paint Sampling Summary

Paint Sampling Summary

Material “Surface/Location Lead (Pb) by weight
Cream paint Exterior block 0.03
Yellow paint Brick form <0.02

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal.

Potential Hazardous Materials

Potential Hazardous Materials
Material Description Location Approximate Quantity
Fluorescent bulbs Throughout 57 bulbs
Ballasts Throughout 36 ballasts
Thermostats Throughout 4 thermostats
Window air conditioner units South side 1 unit
Exit lights Throughout 8 lights

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

i.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the Category II Spancrete caulk, assumed Category 11 electrical panels and
assumed fire doors be removed prior to demolition. These materials must be removed by persons
trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of Health Services to respond to asbestos
confaining materials,

It is not mandatory that the non-friable asphalt roofing material be removed prior to demolition, as
these materials were in good, non-friable condition at the time of this survey (Category I non-friable
ACM). However, the material quantities must be listed on the demolition notice filed with the
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (see item #4) if they are left on the building.

Non-friable asbestos containing materials in good condition that fall under Category 1, such as, floor
tile, mastics and asphalt roofing material may be left in the building during demolition. Per the
USEPA 40 CFR Part 61 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP);
Final Rule, dated November 20, 1990, the material is not required to be removed prior to demolition.
However, while demolition is being performed the material must be wetted and all debris must go to

Page | B15



6.

an approved landfill that accepts demolition debris and does not burn, crush, grind or recycle the
material. In addition, you must have a trained individual knowledgeable in the provisions of 40 CFR
Part 61, Sub-Part M, on site during the demolition and available for inspection during normal
business hours, If the material becomes damaged or rendered friable during demolition, proper
abatement procedures must immediately be instituted.

Recyeling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious

materials, Category I asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may not be recycled unless the adhered Category 1 asbestos
containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recycled.

The listed potential hazardous materials should also be disposed of in compliance with local, state
and federal guidelines prior to demolition

Page [Bl6



Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI
Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 28, 2013

Building E

John Hey Inspector 11, #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AH-170778

Room #/Location Sample LD. # Material Deseription Results
Exterior west E-01A Dark brick mortar Negative
Exterior east E-01B Dark brick mortar Negative
Exterior south E-01C Dark brick mortar Negative

West entry E-02A Light gray seam caulk Negative
Exterior south . E-02B Light gray scam caulk Negative
West entry E-02C Light gray seam caulk Negative
Basement E-03A Cement biock moriar Negative
Basement E-03B , Cement block mortar Negative
Basement E-03C Cement biock mortar Negalive
2" floor E-04A Biack floor felt Negative
2™ floor E-04B Black ficor felt Negative
2% floor B-04C Black ficor felt Negative
1 floor E-05A 27 % 2* white pinhole ceiling tile Negative
2" floor E-05B 2’ x 2" white pinhole ceiling tile : Negative
1* floor E-05C 2’ x 2 white pinhole ceiling tile Negative
Stairs east E-06A ) Black stair tread mastic POSITIVE
Stairs west E-061 Black stair tread mastic Not analyzed
Stairs east E-06C Black stair tread mastic Not analyzed
Stairs E-07A Ceramic {loor tile grout : Negative
Stairs E-078 Ceramic floor tile grout Negative
Stairs E-07C Ceramic floor tile grout Negative
I* floor E-G8A Tan ceramic floor tile mastic Negative
1* floor E-08B Tan ceramic floor tile mastic Negative
1* floor E-08C Tan ceramic floor tile mastic Negative
Basement E-09A Interior tight gray fire brick Negative
Basement E-09B interior light gray fire brick Negative
Basement E-g9C Interior light gray fire brick Negative
Exposed on stairweils E-10A Black mastic POSITIVE
Exposed on stairwells E-10B Black mastic Not anaiyzed
Exposed on stairwells E-10C Black mastic Not analyzed
2" floor E-11A Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
2™ floor E-11A Hard plaster ~ base coat Negative
2" floor E-11B Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
2™ floor E-11B 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
2" floor E-11C Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
2" floor E-11C 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
1" floor E-1iD ' Hard plaster'~ skim coat Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 28, 2013
John Hey Inspector LD. #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector L.D. #Al-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Building E

Room #/Location Sample 1L.D. # Material Description Results
1% floor E-11DI Hard plaster — base coat Negative
1¥ floor E-11E Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
1* floor E-11E ] Hard ptaster — base coat Negative

Basement on block E-12A Hard plaster on block Negative

Basement on block E-12B Hard plaster on block Negative

Basement on block E-12C Hard plaster on block Negative

2" floor partial wall E-13A Hard plaster ~ skim coat Negative
2™ floor partial wall E-13A1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
2™ floor partial wall E-13B Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
2™ floor partial wall E-13B1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
2™ floor partial wall E-13C Hard plaster - skim coat Negative
2" floor partial wall E-13Ct Hard plaster — base coat Negative
Basement E-14A Sheet rock over cement block © Negative
Basement E-14B Sheet rock over cement block Negative
Basement E-14C Sheet rock over cement block Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 28§, 2013
John ey Inspector 1.D. #AI1-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector L.D. #AII-156; John Ramstack Inspecior #AI-170778

Building E1

Room #/Location Sample 1.D. # Material Description Results
1% floor E1-01A Ceiling plaster Negative
1* floox E1-01B Ceiling plaster Negative
1* floor E1-01C Ceiling plaster Negative
1™ floor E1-02A Wall plaster — skim coat Negative
1™ floor E1-02A 1 Wall plaster — base coat Negalive
1™ floor E1-02A 1T Wall plaster — black waterproofling Negative
1* floor E1-02B Wall plaster — skim coat Negative
1* floor E1-02B 1 Wall plaster - base coat Negative
1* floor E1-02B 1I Wall plaster — black waterproofing Negative
Stairs E1-02C Wall plaster - skim coat s
Stairs EF-02C1 Wall plaster - base coat Negative
Stairs E1-02C 11 Wall ptaster — black waterproofing Negative
2™ floor E1-02D Wall plaster — skim coat -
2" floor E1-02D 1 Wall paster - base coat Negative
2™ floor El1-02D II Wall plaster — black waterproofing Negative
2™ fioor E1-02E 11 Wall plaster — black waterproofing Negative
2" floor E1-028 Wall plaster — skim coat Negative
2™ floor E1-02E 1 Wall plaster — base coat Negative
Exterior west E1-03A Gray seam caulk Negative
Exterior north E1-03B Gray seam caulk Negative
Exterior cast E1-03C Gray seam caulk Negative
Basement E1-04A Biack/white inline pipe insulation Negative
Basement E1-04B Biack/white inline pipe insulation Negative
Basement E1-04C Biack/white inline pipe insulation Negative
Exterior frong E1-05A Window glazing Negative
Exterior front E1-0513 Window glazing Negative
Exterior front El-05C Window glazing Negative
2™ floor E1-06A Black mastic pad " POSITIVE
2" floor E1-06B Black mastic pad Not analyzed
2" floor E1-06C Biack mastic pad Not analyzed
Front entry E1-07A Bronze floor leveler Negative
Front entry E1-078 Bronze floor teveler Negative
Front entry E1-07C Bronze floor leveler Negative
Front stairwell entry E1-08A Ceramic tile gold adhesive Negative
Front stairwell entry E1-088 Ceramic tile gold adhesive Negative
Front stairwetl eniry E1-08C Ceramic tile gold adhesive Negative
Basement E1-09A Cement block mortar Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampied on Janvary 28, 2013
John Hey Inspector 1D, #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Building E1

Room #/Location Sample LD, # Material Description Results
Basement E1-098 Cement block mortar Trace!
Basernent EL-09C Cement block mortar Negative
Basement E1-10A Gray conduit fireproofing Negative
Basement E1-10A] Red conduit fireproefing Negative
Basement E1-10B Gray conduit fireproofing Negative
Basement E1-10B 1 Red conduit fireproofing Negative
Basement Ei-10C Gray conduit fireproofing Negative
Basement E1-10Ct Red conduit fireproofing Negative
East stairs El-11A Ceramic tile white grout Negative
East stairs E1-11B Ceramic tile white groui Negative
East stairs E1-11C Ceramic tile white grout Negative

Exterior cast E1-12A Brick mortar Negative
Exterior west E1-12B Brick mortar Negative
Exterior north El1-12C Brick mortar Nepative

'Sample additionally analyzed via EPA 400 point count method.




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI Building F

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on Janvary 29, 2013

John Hey Inspector 1), #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Ingpector 1.1, #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AH-170778

Room #/Location Sample 1.D. # Material Description Results
Exterior north F-01A Window glazing Negative
Exterior west F-01B Window glazing Negative
Exterior east F-01C Window glazing Negative
Boiler storage F-02A Hard plaster Negative
Boiter storage F-02B Hard plaster Negative
Boiler storage F-02C Hard plaster Negative
Southeast office F-03A Black feit on floor Negative
Southeast office F-038 Black feit on floor Negative
Southeast office F-03C Black feit on floor Negative
Storage F-04A Gray floor leveler Negative
Storage F-04B Gray floor leveler Negative
Storage F-04C Gray floor leveler Negative

All rooms F-05A Pipe packing Negative
All rooms F-058 Pipe packing Negative
All roorms F-05C Pipe packing Negative
Boiler F-00A Boiler door white insulation Negative
Boiler E-06B Boiler door white insulation Negative
Boiler F-06C Boiler door white insulation Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 29, 2013
John Hey Inspector LD, #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector LD, #AII-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AI1-170778

Building G

Room #/Location Sample LD. # Material Description Results
Exterior pile G-01A Dark brown insulation board Negative
Interior wall G-0iB Dark brown insulation board Negative

Interior G-01C Dark brown insulation board Negative
Interior north G-02A Black tar waterproofing on block POSITIVE
Interior south G-028 Black tar waterproofing on block Not analyzed

[nterior east G-02C Black tar waterproofing con block Not analyzed

West wall ceiling G-03A Black tar Negative

West wall ceiling G-03A1 Plaster Negative

West wall ceiling G-03B Black tar Negative

West wall ceiling G-03B 1 Plaster Negative

West wall ceiling G-03C Black tar Negative

West wall ceiling G-03C 1} Plaster Negative

North wall G-04A Brown cork insulation tar Negative
North wall G-04A 1 Brown cork insulation Negative
West wall G-04B Brown cork insulation tar Negative
West wall G-048 1 Brown cork insulation Negative
South wall G-04C Brown cork insulation tar Negative
South wali G-04C1 Brown cork insulation Negative
Exterior east G-05A Window caulk Negative
Exterior west G-05B Window caulk Negative
Exterior north G-05C Window caulk Negative
Interior G-06A Cement block mortar Negative
Exterior rubbie G-06B Cement block mortar Negative
Exterior rubbie G-06C Cement block mortar Negative
Interior wall G-07A Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Interior wall G-07A 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
Interior wall G-07B Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Interior wall G-07B 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
Interior wall G-07C Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Interior wall G-07CI Hard plaster — base coat Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1

Building H

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 28, 2013
John Hey Inspector I.I). #A1[-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector L.DD. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AH-170778

Roem #/Location Sample LD, # Material Description Results
Exterior H-01A Capstone black tar Negative
Exterior H-01A M Capstone mortar Negative
Exterior H-01B Capstone biack tar Negative
Exterior H-01B M Capstone mortar Negative
Exterior H-01C Capstone black tar Negative
Exterior H-0IC M Capstone mortar -
Exterior H-02A Cement brick mortar Negative
Exterior H-028 Cement brick mortar Negative
Exterior H-02C Cement brick mortar Negative
Exterior H-03A Overhead door caulk Negative
Exterior H-03B Overhead door caulk Negative
Exterior H-03C Overhead door caulk Negative
Exterior H-04A Tan capsione caulk Negative
Exterior H-04B Tan capstone caulk Negative
Exterior H-04C Tan capstone caultk Negative
Interior H-05A Troweled on plaster Negative
Interior H-05B Troweled on plaster Negative
Interior H-05C Troweled on plaster Negative

Interior ceiling H-06A Brown composite board/black membrane Negative
Interior celling H-06B Brown composite board/black membrane Negative
Interior ceiling H-06C Brown composite board/black membrane Negative
East workshop ceiling H-07A Brown insulation board Negative
East workshop ceiling H-07B Brown insulation board Negative
East workshop ceiling H-07C Brown insulation board Negative
Exterior north H-08A Cement block mortar Negative
Exterior east H-08B Cement block mortar Negative
Exterior south H-08C Cement block mortar Negative
North H-09A Window glazing Negative

South H-09B Window glazing Negative

North H-09C Window glazing Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on February 3, 2013
John Hey Inspector L.D. #AIl-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AI1-170778

Building P

Room #/Location Sample LD. # Material Description Results
Basement P-01A Tan Spancrete caulk POSITIVE
Basement P-01B Tan Spancrete caulk Not analyzed
Basement P-01C Tan Spancrete caulk Not analyzed

Basement cast P-02A Brown peg board Negative
Basement east P-02B Brown peg board Negative
Basement east P-02C Brown peg board Negative
Basement east P-03A Cooler door biack vapor paper Negative
Basement east P-03B Cooler door black vapor paper Negative
Basement east P-03C Cooter door biack vapor paper Negative
Basement east P-04A Cooler door cork insulation Negative
Basement east P-04B Cooler door cork insulation Negative
Basement east P-04C Cooler door cork insulation Negative
Basement east P-05A Cooler black joint tar on cork Negative
Basement cast P-0583 Cooler black joint tar on cork Negative
Basement east P-05C Cooler black joint tar on cork Negative

Basement east wall P-06A White compressed board Negative

Basement east wall P-06B White compressed board Negative

Basement east wall P-06C White compressed board Negative
Basement P-O7TA Brick mortar Negative
Basement P-07B Brick mortar Negative
Basement P-07C Brick mortar Negative

Basement interior east P-08A Silver window caulk Negative
RBasement interior east P-08B Silver window caulk Negative
Basement interior cast P-08C Silver window caulk Negative
Basement P-09A Cement block mortar Negative
Basement P-09B Cement block mortar Negative
Basement P-09C Cement block mortar Negative
Basement east cooler P-10A Plaster over cork Negative
Basement east cooler P-10B Plaster over cork Negative
Basement cast ceoler P-10C Plaster over cork Negative
Basement west P-11A Bronze window caulk Negative
Basement west P-11R Bronze window caulk Negative
Basement west P-11C Bronze window caulk Negative

1* floor P12A Gray wall tile mortar base Negative

1* floor P-12B Gray wall tile mortar base Negative

1* floor P-12C Gray wall tile mortar base Negative

1* floor P-13A Hard plaster Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, W1 Building P
Delahey Industries Project #13006

Sampled on February 5, 2013
John Hey Inspector 1.D. #A11-2512; David A, Muhar Inspector LD, #A11-156; John Ramsiack Inspector #AII-170778

Room #/Location Sample L.D. # Material Description Resulfs
1* floor P-13B lHard plaster Negative

1% floor P-13C Hard plaster — skim coat Megative

1¥ floor P-13C]1 Hard plaster - base coat Negative
Basement P-13D Hard plaster — skim coat Negative
Basement P-13D 1 Hard plaster — base coat Negative
Basement P-13E Hard plaster -- skim coat Negative
Basement P-1313 ¢ Hard plaster — base coat Negative

1 floor P-14A Sheet rock Negalive

I* floor P-14B Sheet rock Negative

1* floor P-14C Sheet rock Negalive

1* Aoor P-15A Octagon tan ceramic floor tile grout Negative

1* floor P-15B Octagon tan ceramic floor tile grout Negative
1* floor P-15C Octagon1an ceramic floor tife grout Negative
1* floor P-16A Gold wall tile adhesive Negative
1* floor P-16B Gold wall tile adhesive Negative
1* floor P-16C Gold wail tile adhesive Negative
1" floor stairs/fioor PA17A 4” x 4" rust ceramic tife white grout Negative
1" floor stairs/floor P-17B 4" x 4” rust ceramic tile white grout Negative
I* floor stairs/floor P-17C 47 x 4” rust ceramic tite white grout Negative
1¥ floor stairs P-18A 67 x 6” quarty tile gray grout Negative
1" floor stairs P-18B 6% x 6” quarry tile gray grout Negative
1* floor stairs P-18C 67 x 6 quarry tile gray grout Negative
1* floor P-19A 4 x 4” yeltow ceramic wall tile white grout Negative
1* floor P-198 4” x 4” yellow ceramic wall tile white grout Negative
1¥ floor P-19C 4” x 47 yellow ceramic wall tile white grout Negative
1 floor ceiling P-20A Brown reinforced concrete paper Negative
17 floor ceiling P-20B Brown reinforced concrete paper Negative
1¥ floor ceiling P-20C Brown reinforced concrete paper Negative
1* floor P21A Gold carpet mastic Negative
1* floor P-21B Gold carpet mastic Negative
1* floor P-21C Gold carpet mastic Negative




Building J -
Building L -
Building O -
Buildings [, K, M, N -

APPENDIX C

Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation
Inspection findings/hazardous materials; laboratory documentation



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, WI
Building J

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings arc based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)
{Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building J

» troweled-on cementitious floor brown

Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead
(Pb) paint analysis:

. Paint Sampling Summary -~ : S '
- Material L Surface/Liocation » =075 1 Lead (Ph) by weight
White paint Exterior cement block <0.02
Brown paint exterior cement block <0.02

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal.

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1. This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition fo verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

Page |C1



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, WI
Building L

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials.

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)
(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building 1,
+ flue packing + hard plasters
« white/brown insulation board + white sheet rock
+ silver coat sheet metal + exterior cement block mortar
* black/gold vapor barrier paper » chimney block mortar
= exterior gray window caulk + exterior glaze block mortar waffled
* quarry tile grout * chimney packing vent
+ door insulation » coated sheet metal

« black roofing material

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materials
Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity

Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category Il Throughout 2 panels

Paint Sampling Summary

Per your request paint samples were collected. The following surfacing materials were sampled for lead
(Pb) paint analysis:

Paint Sampling Summary - : '
Material Surface/Location ' Lead (Pb) by weight
White paint Large south silo 0.02
Blue paint Exterior cement block <0.02

Page |C2



Paint Sampling Summary -

Material = - Surface/Location =~ ~ss - Lead (Ph) by weight

Silver paint Interior metal 0.03

Wisconsin Environmental Health Chapter 254.11 defines “lead bearing paint” as any paint or other surface
coating material containing more than 0.06% lead by weight, calculated as lead metal.

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1.

This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present. At the time
of this inspection every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

It is mandatory that the assumed Category Il electrical panels be removed prior to demolition.
These materials must be removed by persons trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of
Health and Family Services to respond to asbestos containing materials.

Recyeling Advisement: If the owner intends to recycle the concrete, brick or cementitious

materials, Category I asbestos roofing/capstone tar, floor tile mastics, and caulks must be removed.
Concrete, cement block or brick may_not be recycled unless the adhered Category 1 asbestos
containing materials are removed. As well, cementitious materials with lead (Pb) paint adhered
may not be recycled.

Page |C3



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, WI
Building O

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

These findings are based on the bulk sample collection and laboratory analytical results of suspect
materials. ‘

No Asbestos Detected (Negative)
(Laboratory analytical results indicated no asbestos (or less than 1%) was present in these samples.) See
sample log for detailed sample location.

Building O

+ roof ~ black/brown underlayment » interior white/brown insulation paper
* black roofing material

Proven Positive ACBM (greater than 1%) or Assumed to Contain Asbestos

Asbestos Containing Materials

Material Description Category Location Approximate Quantity
Assumed electrical panels/boxes Category II Ground floor 2 panels

Inspection Notes/Response Recommendations:

1. This inspection did not include an assessment of hazard potential or a management or abatement
plan. Wall/ceiling voids, building cavities and mechanical equipment may contain undetected ACM.
These and other inaccessible areas should be under the scrutiny of a competent person, as
applicable, during demolition to verify that no previously enclosed ACBM is present, At the time
of this inspection, every accessible area of the building(s) was inspected.

2. It is mandatory that the assumed Cétegory 11 electrical panels be removed prior to demolition.

These materials must be removed by persons trained and certified by the Wisconsin Department of
Health and Family Services to respond to asbestos containing materials.

Page {C4



Jefferson Nursing Home Site
1425 Wisconsin Avenue, Jefferson, Wi
Buildings I, K, M, N

ASBESTOS INSPECTION FINDINGS

All that remains of these buildings is concrete/cement slabs. No samples of suspect asbestos
containing materials were collected.

Page |C5



Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI Building J
Delahey Industries Project #13006

Sampled on January 29, 2013
John Hey Inspector 1.D. #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector 1.1D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AI1-170778

Room #/Location Sample LD. # Material Description Results
Foundation floor J-01A Troweled-on cementitious floor brown Negative
Foundation {loor J-01B Troweled-on cementitious floor brown Negative
Foundation floor J-01C Troweled-on cementitious floor brown Negative




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 29, 2013
John Hey Inspector LI} #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector LD. #AH-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Building L

Room #/Location Sample L.D. # Material Description Resuits
Chimney L-0T1A Flue packing Negative
Chimney L-0IB Flue packing Negative
Chimney L-01C Flue packing Nepative

Intertor partial watl L-02A Hard plaster Negative

Interior partial wall L-02B Hard plaster Negative

Interior partizl wall L-02C Hard plaster Negative

Interior ceiling L-03A White/brown insulation board Negative
Interior ceiling L-03B White/brown insulation boeard Negative
Interior ceiling L-03C White/brown insulation board Negative
Milk room wall L-04A White sheet rock Negative
Milk room wall 1.-04B White sheet rock Negative
Milk room wall L-04C White sheet rock Negative
Mitk room wall [.-05A Silver coat shect metal Negative
Mitk room wall L-05B Silver coat sheel metal Negative
Milk room wall L-05C Silver coat sheet metal Negative
Exterior cast L-06A Cement block mortar Negative
Exterior north 1.-06B Cement block mortar Negative
Exterior east L-06C Cement block mortar Negative
Interior walls L-07A Black/gold vapor barrier paper Negative
Interior walls L-078 Black/gold vapor barrier paper Negative
Interior walls LL-07C Black/gold vapor barrier paper Negative
Chimney L-08A Chimney block morstar Negative
Chimney L-08B Chimney block mortar Negative
Chimney - L-08C Chimney block mortar Negative

Exterior windows L-09A Gray window caulk Negative

Exterior windows L-09B Gray window caulk Negative

Exterior windows L-0%C Gray window caulk Negative

Exterior west L-10A Gilaze block mortar waffled Negative
Exterior east L-108 Glaze block mortar wa{fled Negative
Exterior west L-10C Glaze block mortar waffled Negative

Milk room floor L-11A Quasry tile grout . Negative

Milk room floor L-11B Quarry tile grout Negative

Milk room floor L-11C Quarry tile grout Negative

Exterior vent L-12A Chimney packing vent Negative
Exterior vent L-12B Chimney packing vent Negative
Exterior vent L-12C Chimney packing vent Negative
Milk house doors [-13A Door insulation Negalive




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI

Delahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 29, 2013
John Hey Inspector 1D, #A11-2512; David A. Muhar Inspector LD, #AI1-156; John Ramstack Inspector #A11-170778

Building L

Room #/Location Sample 1.D, # Material Description Results
Milk house doors L-138 Door insulation Negative
Milk house doors L-13C Door insulation Negative
Interior ceiling L-14A Coated sheet metal Negative
Interior ceiling L-14B Coated sheet metal Negative
Interior ceiling L-14C Coated sheet metal Negative
Roof 1L-15A Black roofing material Negative

Reof L-15B Black roofing material Negative

Roof L-15C Negative

Biack roofing material




Jefferson Nursing Home Site, Jefferson, WI Building O

Detahey Industries Project #13006
Sampled on January 29, 2013

John Hey Inspector LD, #A11-2512; David A, Muhar Inspector 1.D. #A11-156; John Ramstack Inspector #AI-170778

Room #/Location Sample LD. # Material Description Results
Roof 0-01A Black/brown underlayment Negative

Roof 0-01B Black/brown underlayment Negative

Roof a-01C Black/brown underlayment Negative
Interior 0-02A Brown/white insulation paper Negative
Interior 0-02B Brown/white insulation paper Negative
Interior -02C Brown/white insulation paper Negative
Roof 0-03A Black roofing materiai Negative

Roof 0-03B8 Black roofing material Negative

Roof 0-03C Black reofing material Negative




APPENDIX D

Certifications



. w&fﬁ a@ 8._&‘ i 0
659710155 1 nosely

. , 6597 ¥0g 04 - §

| uoRgeg pey iy sowsasy §

ﬁﬁm Mw:osuamooo una Eﬁuﬂaoﬁ.ﬁm jo zﬁ.am
: TR olqng jo uomaK] - §

o .u,woccom n:aom jo Euﬁhaon Smuouwmww

COINYeEFS oo . OEThT-dvO 4 ToeenmIY.
N A U - ure 10T “E107/10/80 “BQ nopendyy-
R TT0Z/SZ/0 :915Q 315] 2420310

@mﬂmum %S&Eoo mowmop.?ﬂ
m%%oo WpY S mﬂ mmm ® §§B§§ st

A omom mﬁmmgm\wommzum .
o @ ANNOWHI'TE M 000€T

UZH SHIALSNANI %gqmm

. e S99 1Y L

88@:.50 éxm&oo ;




 9189-197 (309) etong §
6597-T0LES 1M TosipRiy

659T xog Qd

_ aonceg proy ¥ m&munm,c
ammum Enoauasooo piie [umEuOIATY .wo neamg
H[BIH dNqnd 3o ucmmc:m .

$901AI5G TBSH] JO wﬁﬁuwnoﬂ 5832 B

. ommvm mmn %mo_ﬁﬁuvo
CWB 0TI b107/10/80 e uogeidxy §
NSN\@NR‘O oumD SISS] Smomzuou .

-~ Auedwo) (qd) pesT-
| 8S2OpO WY SIM ‘691 SIH 'Y 19pam pOyRI s

0S92-7TIES IM FAOYD W
Q¥ ANNOWAN'IT M 000€T

‘ONI SHRMISNANI ATHVTAd

JeU} SIS0 SIGL

areonynIo)) Auedwo)

A




% N

anesIdoY HULGIOM PN

Vil a\\ 7 Al AQEI0ULII040 aep sip pasImy

'P10T/L1/10 U0 Sa11dxa YolYM B0BS 4 DEIYMID
spreme Agasay -ou] ‘Bunfnsuoc]y 2p Suturei] Suonsuuy poon “qudunsduionde siyy Jo vonuBooss uf

: (S1p# 24N0D DLVYD) 3p0D UIWPY “SIA ‘651 SHE 4o sopum
S3X{AISS YIEIH JO waunmdaq] ‘WSUOISIA JO TS S AQ PAHIPaIe St PUR {] AL VIS L JO Suawannbat 3y yivm saydwoo s5mod Suures sigp

I2YSa1J oYy J0102dsU] S0ISaqsy

10y sjuatuaanbal uoneoyienb ayy Sunsawr Kgassy

) £10T/L1/10 Uo pIaISTIIUIDR 153) 951102 21}
passed K{Inyssa00ns pue ZOZES JM S9NBM[IA ‘€01 SIING “19aNG UOSIOBS N 65T IOIus)) Sururel) DIVDH
18 €10T/L1/10 - €10Z/L1/10 P21O0PUOS §SBYD FUIUIRL} SOISAGSE NOY-{ B PIPUdE SeY

" 4op 4 uyor

1B say ka0 AQauey “ouj ‘Bunnsuo)) 79 Suruirl [ Juonsuuy poon

£996-1L6 (T9T)  ZOZES IM PMBMUN Ly (-00L# uepdD T phs

*ou] ‘unynsuo)) 29 Surures], 3uonSWLIY poon)




o) WOUPY SIH ‘€91 SAH 7 opun
$PULE Apum. puv WpEPH fo AR UISHOISIAY JO IS 2yt 4G PRIPRIOOL St pUD JO spuriizanbas ) yss sondiiod asinod Tuuros sty |

$9604 ‘# Qi #5003 DOA

. DI
DIVTI 4280uvpy Supuid | “so4owppo o1y ISirriotociavay H PUOYBIE) 25in0)
m_ 107 6 diomuny “PPVISS] AWOY3) 3502 210
e 10z Y Kiomenp 2p0(] 1S3 [ 254N0))
i i parfyoorg Ul €10z ¢ fonupy  HO

ISIN0)) IPYSILIDY L0SSISSY YSIY PIT

inoy-g ayz i0f
Sjuawaiinbas 12130 [1p paga)dutod pup 3521 2s4n0> pasinbas ayy passod mfssaoons soy

SOBES 7] Pryoosy
MUY YLION 3594 $89Z ]

AOH “d uyor

GLOG-[EFFIF FHONT LOUES LM SoYMVoIRy INUGAY IMUDPINKIY § L FTT
ou] Baprma ] ponfisray rampry fo worsiap y

L2IUI]) UONDULIOfUT SOISIGSY /PDIT FINNDMIL




PO Y UBUPY “SEM 6T SHG Y7 A2PUIt $30U042% WIDBLE fO dind XT uiSuoasiy fo arorg 2y dg papasosn st pup 7 I YOSL o susuaimbas ayr yrim saydwos ssmos Suratra sup

9096 # I 2510 T

LOTES [ "2oqnompyy ‘onuany fjomogy 4inoS | [€6 ‘1ajo] uowyy HOHDIOT

el LB B 691b+6010€ 14y “4PJUNN UOBDIYBLID
INUINY TUBOPILY £ 17T FI07 ‘6 Aermunp . ﬁﬁ.ﬁﬁ.&wﬁmﬁm .\.Q il
BH] ABIUETY HORDUIOMUT SOISIYSY, PDFT ITIRDMHUY JO J010345(T 4dap)af Stiy ]

£107 "6 Advnupp panssy amwd

Ill..$ Wm — = :asano)y fo apoq
‘ £107 ‘6 Aonunf

28IN0)) J2YS2L[IY 40J02dsU] S01SaqSY

UD SO UOIDIIf114203Y
UISHOOSIA JO 2ID]S 2Y] 40f D142]14D [[D S122ut J0y) Waoad )y JO 24008 wnwguiu v ym
€102 ‘6 Aienuer  UO UONDUIUDXS 21} pasSDd pup 3s4noo v pajajduiod Qnfssasons sogy

AOYN Y pravq

OLOG-IRFF 1P ‘PHOY [JOTES LY POYRDIMYY "2HUIAY SUUDOTUINLY § 2122
P B paifiid ) ISP fo uoisiap

A3JU3)) UOYDWLIOJUT SOISIGSY /PDIT IIYNDMIIY




oGS o, 2407 "Lz v, oS opoonfmag, - omgswonearrg,

IS LL . ZH£5/90 - T1/52/90 G o0 | 70T I

oY - TTET

.. | 50755 M, Pprompyy, g gmmuﬁe? L5710, SUpy,
| 006£-L7L (91Y) % Y0755 GMs PP J0UL « g TG T LT

D11 72088V % 18qI9H V" S
..ouowamc_ usm@nmd .ESE ma..:ou

PR, MRS T, 655 STED %S.saséwea@o%%es&@g%%ss%% _
- Fppempror s pun GG omg, Y@ .99, fesrwawermbor oy sppm sondures asnmos b 1y,

m0Foy Parsty o osImod 2y fo s

yoejswey uyopr

"ON .too
vEETI




 {82-10-600Z "AZM) DIO-IVIAN

4 30 um.nv.hﬁ

' sejep anpayg

huo..oucom h pueg m?mu:mwm 4O |InysUl jeuonEN mﬁ L_om . %% 2@ .
| ..i.,g R :
QJ iy
WA

{6002 Aenuep paep .ma.oEnEEoo uﬂ.O«é.OmN Jof o} L_&m.t E&m& s EwEmmmﬁmE _
\ﬂsmav Liojeioqef e jo uojeiado ay] pue adoos patiap B 10} eous}eduwos 180Ilyoa] SOJRIISUOWBP UONEYDB.IODE SiY .h
mmow mmoh 3 Om_ﬁo,ﬂ piepuers H,mcoamE&:__ Daziubooars sy} Ym. B0UBPIO0I Ut paypainoe Si b&m._oa& syl

E?@zﬁmw&m SOLSHAASY vibm

“L10) ‘UONB}PaIogY JO 8d60g oy uo pasy
mmo.ccmm o Laom% 10} Eﬂmoﬁ uoijypaI0Y b&&oamq b&c&o} Eccamz sy Aq nw%&oom s/

N
Vi g W

0€-90-€10C YBnop | 0-L0-C107

- VA gﬁo%ﬁ Lo
vmcmﬁoqm Bm:mEAw

a..gmgﬂ MQOU ﬁﬂ% _

~ 500z:520L} 93NOSI S._._co_ﬁ__%._uu,q 10 21EOYIRD |

>mo_occom ._. v:m mv._wv_:wuw mo QE_«w:_ _m:o&mz
mo._mEEoo mo EmEtmﬂmm wmuﬁw um«:_: .




ﬂj A Natzonal Voluntary - o
: NW LED] Laboratory Accred:tation Program

SCOPE OF ACCREDITATION TO ISO/IEC 17025 2005

AmenSci Rlchmond
dba AmenSci Richmond
13635 Genito Road
Midlothian, VA 23112
: " Mr. Thomas B. Keith
Phone 804-763-1200 Fax:.804-763-1800
- E-Mail: bkexth@amensm com -
- URL hitp://wwwammerisci. com '

' '-?{‘;BULK ASBESTOS FIBER ANALYSIS (PLM) ~ NVLAP LAB CODE 1019040 °
NVLAP ‘Céde' Desigriation / Descrlpﬁ'on

: 1‘8)_’}_\0-1_ " EPA-600/M4-82- 020 Interim Method for the Determination of Asbestos in Butk Insulation .
_ Sampies

. 2012:07-01 through 2013-06-30° W-.__ Q W LD
: _ Effective dates - . ' For the Nalicnal Institute of Standerds and Technoiogy
' ' NVLAP:01S (REY. 2005-05-18)

Page I of I



- DEPAHTMENT OF PROFESS[ONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL REGULATION o L
o SISO ‘ COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA: - - e NUWER iy
o | B8R0 Mayland Dr., Sulte 400, Richmond, VA 23233 o
__ _l03~31—2013] o Taiephone (304)3573500 B PR [ 3333 000266 J

VIRGINIA Asaesrns LICENSE ‘“'; - Efﬂ |

ASBESTUS ANALYTICAL LABORATORY LICENSE

AMERICA SCIENCE TEAM. RIQHMDND INC e
13635 GENITQ ROAD - "

"MIDLOTHIAN. vn>23112

MLTERATION OF TH:A DOCIANRNT, USE AFTER EXPIRATION, ON 52 BY FERROND ON MinWs OTHER - - o oo o Gordon N. Dinon, Directbr
AN THOSE HALIED MAY REBULT W CRIMNAL PAGIECUTION UNDER THE COBE OF VIRGIMA. . Lo : S . j

(BEE REVERBE SIDE FOR NAME ANDROR ADDRESS CHANGE)

{POGKET CARD) . . : T T . cummume;
o COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA ! DEPARTMENT orpnopssslonm. AND occUPAﬂONALREGULAﬂON
_VIRGINIA ASBESTOS LYCENSE b e Naiend O Sule &oo, Achriond, VA 25333
ASBESTOS ANALYTICAL LABORATORY i ' ’ SRR
" NUMBER: 3333 000280 Exmazs os 31-2013 |
_pcn PLN TEM 7
®

.mzam scIE_ncs TEAM
13636 GENITO ROAD

MIDLOTHIAN VA 23112

ALTERATION OF THES DOGUMENT, UBE AFTER EXPIRATHOW, OR USE BY PERBDHE OH FIHME OTHER THAR THOSE NAWED MAY REJILT 4 C!KIMLFHD’IEWHW UNDER FHE COCE OF VIAHA



T (8zU0-B00Z AZMI OLOGYIAN

A@Q@Eum .h. b:m. wEmE&m b8 &S@»E _.mcoamz ayy Jof ) w&mv méomhm

0£-90°€107 yBnoxg Sé,msm ..

_ 600z bm::mﬁ pajep m:u..::EEoo. Y0 3\.09 MSQ. 0} g&m& Emww% EmEmmmsz
Arenb b&mgonﬁ B JO Uol}RIBU0 By} pur 5d03s PaUBP B.10) S0UBIBAIWI0D [BOIIYOD) SBIRNSUCIISD Loneypasooe siy|
'GOOE-GC0LE OIOSI Pmbc&w jRuoRRLSL] nmN_EmocE oLy Y BOUEPIOVE Uf nmyo&oom st b&m\oa& s

mu.m.wj Zﬁ Mmm“—.m mOHmﬁ&m< HZMO%

o B 7] c%mu.o&ocq 40 mo_ouw mﬂ to um,ﬁ.ﬁ .
- mm.s&mw o%umqm, 10§ E&m&& :oam%&uoq b&&ocﬂ bmwcsos. ~w:oam2 mﬁ Aq .omunm:oom Q

. <> Aaﬁﬁo%g
_EcEnu—m Sw:um}w

R 3@&2 mnou mﬁ .ng

| ¢00z:520LL D3NOSI 9_ _”:p.__uﬁ_neo% J0 9jeoRISY

>m2o:auw .w u:m mevcﬂw VS ﬁsu_ww:_ _mco_umz
oo.EEEoo jo u:mEtmawm mﬁﬁm _uot::




"’.ﬂsp

wﬁa A@ National Voluntary |

Laboratory Accredltation Program %

| SC()PE OF ACCREDITATION TO ISO/IEC 17025 2005

AmenSci Rlchmond
dba  AmeriSci Richmond
. 13635 Genito Road
Midlothian, VA 23112
Mr. Thomas B. Keith :
~ Phone: 804-763-1200 Fax: 804.-763-1800
E-Mail: bkeith@amerisci.com
URL: http://www.amerisci.com

AIRBORNE ASBESTOS FIBER ‘ANALYSIS_ (TEM) - NVLAP LAB CODE 101904-0

NVLAP Co‘_ﬁe- Des;gnatmn / Descrzpiwn

' 18/A02 N  U.S.EPA's "lnterzm Transmission. Electron Mlcroscopy Analyﬂcal Methods- Mandatory and
E Nonmandatory arid Mandatory Section to Deterimine Completion of ReSponse Actions" as .
found in 40 CFR, Part 763; Subpart E, Appen&m A,
20 12}0_7'—01 thr't_)ugh ~2013v06—330 - Q W LD
- - Effective dates Forthe Natfonai Instfture of Standards end Technology
Page 1 _b_f 1 '

NVLAP 015 (REV 2005-05—1 9)






	Infrastructure Committee Packet
	AGENDA

	#6 Committee Minutes

	#8 CSA Information

	#9 Highway Department Lake Mills Satellite Shop Resolutuion


	Supplemental Information

	1
	2
	3
	4


